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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Creative China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (“the GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Creative
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
revenue increased by approximately 8.0% to approximately
RMB78.4 million as compared to that of last year. The
Group had a gross profit of approximately RMB11.0 million
which represents a decrease of 66.7% as compared to
approximately RMB33.0 million in last year. The Group
had a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB16.1 million as compared to a
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately RMBO0.5 million in last year. The Group’s net
assets increased by approximately 8.3% to approximately
RMB138.6 million as compared to that of last year.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and other information
in 2016 with shareholders in the following section of
management discussion and analysis.

REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
continued to focus on our traditional core business of
program production and event organisation in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Besides maintaining the
business relationship with our loyal customers, we put our
best efforts on finding new customers to increase our market
shares. The results of our efforts have been proven by our
increased turnover.

Apart from our traditional business, we have developed
mobile live broadcasting and entertainment contents on
demand system (“Entertainment On Demand System”)
businesses during the year ended 31 December 2016.
Beijing Yiju Creative Technology Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, has launched a mobile phone application
called “Great Star” during the year. Users can experience
live broadcasting programs on the platform. We have also
entered into contract with Mr. Huang Xiaoming and Mr. Tong
Dawei. Both of them are famous movie stars in the Greater
China Area. They will provide live broadcasting services
of entertainment contents in “Great Star”. The Group will
endeavour to cooperate with other artists and celebrities to
further increase the popularity of “Great Star”.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERE

Furthermore, the Group completed the acquisition of Capital
Land Digital Entertainment Co., Limited (“Capital Land”) on
15 November 2016. Capital Land is principally engaged
in the technical development, consultancy and promotion
of Entertainment On Demand System in the PRC and
integrates and consolidates a large volume of high quality
contents including movies, sport events, celebrities live
broadcasting, video games, virtual reality, music, etc. The
Fengtingxun Entertainment On Demand System operated
by Capital Land is progressively installed to various locations
including karaoke boxes, mini-cinemas, hotels and internet
cafes.

PROSPECTS

With the kick-off of a series of new business developments
in 2016, we are excited about the opportunities ahead.

The mobile live broadcasting industry has been developing
rapidly in recent years and has become an investment
hot spot in the internet industry. The Group has a unique
business model of “pan-entertainment content live
broadcasting + e-commerce” in the mobile live broadcasting
industry. Focusing on pan-entertainment contents with
celebrities and artists as the core and live broadcasting
as the media, we will provide numerous enjoyable
entertainment contents with high value. We believe that
it can attract a high number of users. Furthermore, we
can provide smooth interaction between supporters and
celebrities and artists on the platform. It can also increase
the loyalty of the users. We are optimistic of the potential
revenue from mobile live broadcasting business. We also
expect that “Great Star” can become popular and gain more
market share during the rapid development of mobile live
broadcasting industry by the cooperation with the famous
stars and artists.

Furthermore, the Entertainment On Demand System
business developed during the year also has great potential.
The Entertainment On Demand System operated by Capital
Land can implant diversified contents like movies, music,
sport events and video games, etc. to entertainment
locations like karaoke boxes, mini-cinemas, hotels and
internet cafes through the on demand system to develop a
pan-entertainment system and lead to a new consumption
pattern of popular entertainment. Capital Land has
directly obtained the authorisation of high quality contents
from famous IP (intellectual properties) holders. With the
increasing market demand of personalised services, we
believe that development in this market would have a
great prospect. We expect Capital Land can fully realise its
competitive advantages with the Group’s resource, and can
provide a strong base for the Group to enter into this market
with great potential and considerable revenue to the Group
in the future.
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For our program production and event organisation
businesses, apart from maintaining our competitive
advantage that we have developed for years, we will
continue to seek different cooperation models with our
clients to maximise our profits.

The Group will keep the shareholders abreast of the latest
development of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
appreciation to the Group’s employees for their hard work
and contributions during the past year. With the solid
business base and the effort of all staff, | believe the Group
will create a bright future.

Philip Jian Yang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 February 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmKk D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
turnover of approximately RMB78.4 million (2015: RMB72.6
million), representing an 8.0% increase as compared to the
last year.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

g dm) -]
ERE
BE_ZT-—R"F+_A=1+—"HLFE FTEEHKEE

FBOARE8ABET(ZE—HF : ARET26BE
T0)  BEFIEINL8.0% °

REEFANEERBEONOT

2016 2015

—E-REF —E-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Program production FIEES G 49,254 35,663
Event organisation PEEIE -2 29,018 36,933
Mobile live broadcasting BENEHE 120 -
Entertainment On Demand System IREEDLIE R AR 43 -
78,435 72,596

The increase in turnover was mainly due to (i) considerable
income from the production of variety programs to television
station; and (ii) more service income generated from the
increased number of automobile exhibitions during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
a gross profit of approximately RMB11.0 million and a gross
profit margin of approximately 14.0% (2015: gross profit of
approximately RMB33.0 million and gross profit margin of
approximately 45.5%). Due to the intense competition, the
increasing cost of artists and production teams, the strategy
of offering more competitive prices to new customers of
variety programs and corporate activities in order to increase
our market share and the additional operating costs for the
new mobile live broadcasting business, there is a decrease
in the overall gross profit margin of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Expenses

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately RMB13.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB10.6 million
as compared to 2015. This significant increase was mainly
due to (i) the increased number of marketing staff and
resources utilised during the year ended 31 December 2016
for pitching activities to explore new business opportunities;
(i) marketing expenses, content production costs and
development costs of the new mobile live broadcasting
business; and (i) the marketing and promotion expenses
incurred for the Entertainment On Demand System since
Capital Land became the subsidiary of the Company.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB
10.1 million, from approximately RMB17.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB27.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase
was due to (i) higher legal and professional expenses after
the Company was listed on GEM in the fourth quarter of
2015; and (i) the increase in staff cost for staff employed
during the year ended 31 December 2016 for the expansion
of our existing businesses and the development of
technology, operation, maintenance and content production
for mobile live broadcasting and Entertainment On Demand
System businesses.

Income tax credit/(expense)

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approximately RMB4.7 million as compared to income
tax expense of approximately RMB3.8 million in last year.
Income tax credit/(expense) mainly represented PRC
enterprise income tax for the group companies calculated
at 25% on taxable income in accordance with the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. The income tax credit for the year
was mainly contributed by the recognition of deferred tax
asset for the unutilised tax losses of certain subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC.

(Loss)/profit for the year

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB17.7 million as compared to a profit
of approximately RMBO0.3 million in last year. The Group
recorded net loss for the year due to: (i) our competitive
pricing strategy which decreased the gross profit margin;
(i) the higher costs incurred during the production of variety
programs, such as cost of artists and production costs
and (i) an increase in selling and distribution costs and
administrative expenses as mentioned above.

Financial resources, liquidity and capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
financed its operations by internally generated cash flow and
shareholders’ equity. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
had net current assets of approximately RMB94.2 million (31
December 2015: RMB113.6 million) including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB43.3 million (31 December
2015: RMB109.6 million). The current ratio, being the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 4.9 as
at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 6.4).

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares.
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB128.9 million as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB127.4 million).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Overview

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of
program production and event organisation in the PRC.
The turnover from program production segment and event
organisation segment for the year ended 31 December
2016 increased by approximately 38.1% and decreased
by approximately 21.4% respectively as compared to 2015
respectively. The increase in total turnover was resulted
from the enlarged customer base of the Group and has
affirmed the effort of the Group’s expansion plan of the
business. In addition, the Group has entered into the mobile
live broadcasting and Entertainment On Demand System
business during the year and attempts to become one
of the major participants in these two rapidly developing
markets. However, the higher costs incurred for artists and
productions, combining with the effect of the increasing
marketing expenses and administrative expenses for the
increase in business scale for our existing businesses and
development of new operation outside the core businesses
of the Group, has led to a net loss before income tax of
approximately RMB22.4 million during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Program Production

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the production of
variety shows to the television station was the main reason
of the increase in turnover. The turnover from program
production and related services amounted to approximately
RMB49.2 million, which increased by approximately 38.1%
in comparison with the last year. This segment recorded a
reportable segment profit of approximately RMBO0.9 million
during the year (2015: approximately RMB5.6 million). The
decrease in reportable segment profit is due to the decrease
in gross profit margin strategy for revenue from new
customers, higher costs incurred for artists and production
and increased staff costs on the larger scale of operation.

Event Organisation

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover
from event organisation and related services amounted
to approximately RMB29.0 million, which represented
a decrease of approximately 21.4% in comparison with
2015. The main reason of the decrease was because the
Group did not derive any revenue from the organisation of
film premiere ceremonies and awards ceremonies during
the year ended 31 December 2016, while approximately
RMB11.2 million was recorded from the organisation of film
premiere ceremonies and awards ceremonies during the
year ended 31 December 2015. This segment recorded a
reportable segment profit of approximately RMBO0.3 million
during the year (2015: approximately RMB9.3 million). The
significant decrease in reportable segment profit is due
to (i) the decrease in revenue as mentioned above; (i) the
adoption of decreased gross profit margin strategy for
revenue from new customers; and (iii) the increased number
of staff and marketing expenditure for pitching activities.
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Mobile Live Broadcasting

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
started the mobile live broadcasting business and launched
a mobile phone application called “Great Star” to provide
live broadcasting programs to users. Also, the Group has
entered into agreements with Mr. Huang Xiaoming and Mr.
Tong Dawei during the year and these two famous movie
stars in the Greater China Area will provide live broadcasting
service in “Great Star”. This segment recorded a reportable
segment loss of approximately RMB12.1 million during the
year which is mainly contributed by the initial development
costs, content production costs and marketing and
promotion expenses.

Entertainment On Demand System

The Company acquired 51% equity interest of Capital
Land on 15 November 2016 which engages in technical
development, consultancy and promotion of an
Entertainment On Demand System called “Fengtingxun” in
the PRC. “Fengtingxun” focuses on the post-cinema market
in the PRC and has obtained authorisations of different
high quality contents from number of famous IP holders to
develop a pan-entertainment system. Customers can pay
on demand in the entertainment locations like mini-cinemas,
internet cafes, karaoke boxes and hotels etc., which can
promote a new spending pattern and lead to a form of
entertainment. This segment recorded a reportable segment
loss of approximately RMB4.3 million during the year which
is mainly contributed by initial marketing and promotion
expenses for “Fengtingxun”.

Prospects

Compared to maximising profits in the near-term, the Group
is more focused on our long-term strategic development.
Nowadays, internet is well-developed in the PRC and
relevant industries are continuing to expand. Confining
the Group’s development in program production and
event organisation would limit our potential in utilising our
competitive advantages. Therefore, we believe the strategy
of increasing the scale of our core business and currently
spending more on the development of opportunities from
various related business will enable our Group to be more
cost-effective and competitive in the long run.
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The mobile live broadcasting and Entertainment On Demand
System businesses are in the fast-growing internet market.
The Group expects “Great Star” can leverage on star
effect to attract more loyal users. In addition, the Group will
continue to seek different forms of cooperation with more
famous movie stars in order to increase the popularity and
the market share of “Great Star”. As for “Fengtingxun”,
following the continuing development of post-cinema market
and the growing market demand of pan-entertainment, we
believe that the high-quality contents of “Fengtingxun” will
attract more entertainment locations like mini-cinemas, KTV,
internet cafes, hotels to become our cooperative partners.
Together with the entertainment contents from famous P
holders, we expect that the coverage of “Fengtingxun” will
increase continuously and bring more potential revenue to
the Group. Overall speaking, although the development
of the new internet-related businesses comes along with
certain risks, these new businesses can accommodate
current market change and demand in the PRC and provide
a good foundation for the Group to develop apart from to our
traditional core businesses.

Our professional team and loyal customers of traditional
core businesses are our important assets. Together with
the proactive development of new businesses, seeking
cooperation with different customers, maintaining good
relationship with our major customers and exploration
of different and new cooperation models are also the
key focuses to maintain our competitive advantage. The
Group believes the new businesses will not jeopardise our
traditional core businesses. On the contrary, it can diversify
the Group’s businesses and expand our operation scale
which will benefit the overall development of the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, The Group had a total of
225 employees (2015: 123). The increase in number of
employees was mainly contributed by the employees of
mobile live broadcasting and Entertainment On Demand
System businesses. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and the prevailing
market situation. Their remuneration packages are normally
renewed on an annual basis, based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group may pay
a discretionary bonus to its employees based on individual
performance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The turnover and direct costs of the Group are mainly in
Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group will review and monitor from
time to time the risk relating to foreign exchanges.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group purchased property, plant and equipment
amounting to approximately RMB2.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately RMBO0.6
million).
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any capital
commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, there were no significant
contingent liabilities for the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were no significant investments held as at 31
December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: nil). Apart from
the acquisition of Capital Land on 15 November 2016,
there were no other material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiary or affiliated company made by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (during the year ended
31 December 2015: nil).

COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out
in the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) for the period from 6
November 2015, being the latest practicable date as defined
in the Prospectus, to 31 December 2016 (the “Review
Period”) with the Group’s actual business progress for the
Review Period is set out as follows:
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Business objectives

RERR

Actual progress

BERXBER

Expanding the spectrums of video categories to be
broadcasted online and related services

1RIRA5 SATE 2R 80 B = AR 1R I S AR B AR TS

Exploring additional and diversified revenue streams to
share the advertising profits of the customers generated
from the television and online programs produced by the
Group in addition to charging a fixed production fee

PR YCER B BUME B S - BIREEIN R Z T IRE SR -
HERFER R BEE B TEENEFP BES G H

Setting up a studio for shooting programs, holding
promotional events for brand owners and other related
uses

RBEGE - AGEEA NS EEH R R
B EEA

Use of Proceeds from the Placing of Shares

The Company was successfully listed on GEM on 18
November 2015 by way of the placing of a total of
300,000,000 new shares in the Company at the placing
price of HK$0.39 each (the “Placing”) and the net proceeds
raised from the Placing were about HK$101.2 million
after deduction of underwriting commission and relevant
expenses.
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During the Review Period, the Group has launched a
mobile phone application called “Great Star” to provide
the live broadcasting videos to users. Also, the Group has
entered into agreements with Mr. Huang Xiaoming and
Mr. Tong Dawei during the year. Both of them are famous
movie stars in the Greater China Area. They will provide
certain live broadcasting service in “Great Star”. The costs
incurred for “Great Star” during the Review Period were
mainly contributed by the development, content production
and promotional expenditure.
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The Group has been engaged in production of some
variety programs with profit sharing arrangement with
our customers and recognised corresponding income
during the Review Period. The Group will continue to
seek opportunities to share profits from our customers in
addition to the fixed production fee.
RNEBEECERERE T —LBEFSFNBD Z LEHR
2678 - WHRSHEBNEERA - AEESEEREHS K
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The Group had continued to identify a suitable location
to set up the studio and negotiated with certain landlords
on the detailed terms but no formal agreements had been
reached during the Review Period. Therefore, there was no
use of fund during the Review Period.
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The use of the net proceeds from the Placing as at 31
December 2016 was approximately as follows:

EEET WD

Z-ANF+ZA=1t—B EEMEFEAEMOM

Adjusted use of
proceeds in the

same manner
and proportion

as stated in
Prospectus
BRERFM Utilised
FRREHIFAE amount
FERIERZ EBASE
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEBT BEBTT
Expanding the spectrums of video FEIEAR SRS A 40 B S AR IR N
categories to be broadcasted online NARR RIS (K77 ()
and related services (note (i) 50.6 25.0
Exploring additional and diversified revenue Bk U ER & iE RUEEHD -
streams to share the advertising profits of BEFEINRZ T L E SRR -
the customers generated from the DIEBUEER RABLRENB
television and online programs produced FIEENEEES BT (A 6)
by us in addition to charging a fixed
production fee (note (i) 25.3 25.3
Setting up a studio for shooting programs, BVHEEE - RoMEAEA
holding promotional events for brand BRSEEE R EMBERS
owners and other related uses (note (iii)) BOER RO (B 5E (i) 15.2 -
Expanding the program production and BARE B RHEREEN BT
event organisation businesses, MIER—RREEER
and as general working capital 10.1 6.4
101.2 56.7

Notes:

()

(i)

(i)

Compare to the estimation in the Prospectus, the schedule of
launching the application for the live stream videos to be watched
online via mobile and other platforms had been delayed, therefore
the utilised amount of the net proceeds from the Placing as at 31
December 2016 was lower than the estimated relative utilisation
as at the same date disclosed in the Prospectus.

During the Review Period, the Group had provided production
services to a television station for certain variety programs. As
the cost for artists and production teams were higher than the
estimated production costs in the Prospectus, the utilisation of
the net proceeds from the Placing as at 31 December 2016 was
higher than the estimated relative utilisation as at the same date
disclosed in the Prospectus.

During the Review Period, the Group tried to identify a suitable
location to set up the studio. However, there was no suitable site
identified. Therefore, no relative net proceeds from the Placing
were utilised. The Group intends to change the use of this part of
proceeds from the Placing to the recent developed Entertainment
On Demand System business. Please refer to the following
paragraphs headed “Change in use of proceeds” for the details.

wist

(i)

(ii)
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EEENmKk D

Change in use of proceeds

As stated in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus, approximately 15% the net
proceeds from the Placing (i.e. approximately HK$15.2
million, the “Relevant Net Proceeds”) is intended for setting
up a studio for shooting programs, holding promotional
events for brand owners and other related uses. The set-
up of the studio has been delayed as the Group cannot
identify a suitable location. Up to the date of this report,
the Company has not utilised any amount of net proceeds
from the Placing for setting up the studio. The Group has
started the Entertainment On Demand System business
in the PRC recently and believes this business has great
potential because of the rapid growth in the post-cinema
market and huge market demand in pan-entertainment. In
order to allow more flexibility for the Company to capture
market opportunities, on the date of this report, the Board
resolved to change the proposed use of Relevant Net
Proceeds to the promotion and operation of the digital
entertainment platform of the Group. The Directors consider
that the change in the use of the Relevant Net Proceeds
can reallocate more resources to the development of the
Entertainment On Demand System of the Group, which
will be in the interest of the Company as Entertainment On
Demand System business would bring considerable revenue
as mentioned in the paragraphs headed “Prospects” above
and save time and cost as compared with that may incur
for time-consuming negotiation and decoration of setting up
the studio of the Group and is more in line with the current
needs of the Group. Accordingly, the business objective
disclosed in the Prospectus in relation to setting up a studio
for shooting programs, holding promotional events for brand
owners and other related uses (the “Relevant Business
Objective”) will also be changed. As the Group currently
focuses on developing the new business of Entertainment
On Demand System and the Relevant Business Objective
does not have any substantial progress, the Directors
consider the Relevant Business Objective does not conform
with the current market and industry situation as well as
latest development of the Group. The Board believes the
change from the Relevant Business Objective to develop
and expand the Entertainment On Demand System
business would be more in line with the future plans of the
Group under current situation.
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Save for the aforesaid changes, there has been no other BrA_EFRitioh - BEEEMEEEMSFIBFE AR LNA
change in the use of the net proceeds from the Placing and IRERPIREAER B IR E R
business objectives disclosed in the Prospectus.

For the reasons aforesaid, the Directors consider that the WA FREFTI  EFRA - N REMSFIBFEAR
change in proposed use of Relevant Net Proceeds conforms TENRTIGS RITENERE MBIRALNEEESHHEMEIREY

with the development of the market and industry and will e BNRAEBEEZ TILERA N AR EERERE
improve efficiency of use of proceeds of the Group, which is FWAKRIE - EERE  NEREBHEFEZREBEANT
advantageous to the diversification of the Group’s business B8 WRHFEARRNE MAN BRI EEETRZ -

and will provide a steady income stream of the Group. The
Directors consider that the change in use of net proceeds is
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

TRASZRERAT —E-AFEERE 17
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to establishing good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group’s goals.
The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

The Board has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules. Continuous efforts are made to review
and enhance the Group’s risk management and internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations
and developments in best practices. To us, maintaining
high standards of corporate governance practices is not
just complying with the provisions but also the intent of
the regulations to enhance corporate performance and
accountability.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December
2016, except where otherwise stated.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors (the “Required
Standard of Dealings”). The Company has confirmed, having
made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors have
complied with the Required Standard of Dealings throughout
the year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:

Executive directors:

Mr. Philip Jian Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Li Lin

Mr. Yang Shiyuan

Mr. Sun Rui

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Ge Xuyu
Mr. Wang Yong

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Li Fei

Mr. Law Kin Ho

Mr. Tan Song Kwang

An updated list of directors and their role and functions is
maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange and the independent non-executive directors are
identified by name in all corporate communications.

Each independent non-executive director has given an
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company,
and the Company considers them to be independent under
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, six Board
meetings and one annual general meeting (“2016 AGM”)
were held and the attendance of each director is set out as
follows:

Name of director

EEns

Mr. Philip Jian Yang 15 &5t 4

Mr. Li Lin 283x 504

Mr. Yang Shiyuan 5t iR 504
Mr. Sun Rui &85 504

Mr. Ge Xuyu B JEF L4

Mr. Wang Yong ST B 5t 4

Mr. Li Fei 254

Mr. Law Kin Ho Z&fE 5% &

Mr. Tan Song Kwang FR#2 ¢ 58 4

Corporate Governance Report
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Attendance record for the meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2016

REBE-Z—AF+-A=+—-HLEHFEZ
SRLFTHE

Board meetings 2016 AGM
Exgel —NERFRBFRE
6/6 1/1

6/6 11

6/6 11

6/6 1/1

6/6 1/1

4/6 11

5/6 1/1

6/6 1/1

6/6 11
HEAISEZERERAR E-REFERE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

All the Directors (including the independent non-executive
directors) have acquired a proper understanding of the
Company’s operation and business and are fully aware of
his functions and responsibilities under statute and common
law, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable legal
and regulatory requirements. Every director has given the
Company the details on the number and nature of offices
held in other companies and significant commitments at the
time of his appointment.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Group and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on formulating the
Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating
performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and
setting the Group’s values and standards. Though the Board
delegates the day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group to management, all the directors
continue to give sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs. The delegated functions are reviewed by
the Board periodically to ensure that they accommodate the
needs of the Group.

Apart from the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (as defined below), the
Company did not set up any other board committees for
dealing with any matters during the year.

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on Director’s and officer’s liabilities arising from the Group’s
business. The Company reviews the extent of insurance
coverage on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of the
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc.

The Board holds meetings from time to time whenever
necessary. At least 14 days notice of regular Board meetings
would be given to all directors and they can include matters
for discussion in the agenda as they think fit. The agenda
accompanying Board papers would be sent to all directors
at least 3 days before the date of every Board meeting
in order to allow sufficient time for the directors to review
the documents. The Chairman would also ensure that all
directors are properly briefed on matters arising at board
meetings.
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Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all directors
for their perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the
minutes. The duly signed minutes are open for inspection by
any director. The Board also ensures that it is supplied in a
timely manner with all necessary information in a form and of
a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and
services of the company secretary with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Board members are enabled
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to assist them
to discharge their duties. They are also entitled to have full
access to Board papers and related materials so that they
are able to make an informed decision and to discharge their
duties and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Philip Jian Yang is the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is responsible
for the overall operations, management, business
development and strategy planning of the Group.

The Chairman also takes the lead to ensure that the
Board works effectively and acts in the best interest of the
Company by encouraging the directors to make active
contribution in Board’s affairs and promoting a culture of
openness and debate.

The Board is of the view that although Mr. Yang is both
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, the balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals who would
meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting operation
of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The current Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”) provide that at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Each independent non-executive director is
required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if
there is any change that may affect his independence and
must provide an annual confirmation of his independence to
the Company. Up to the date of this report, no independent
non-executive director has served the Company more than
9 years.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to
the Board. Records of the training received by the respective
directors are kept and updated by the company secretary of
the Company.

The individual training record of each director received for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is summarised below:

Name of director

BEEHR

Mr. Philip Jian Yang 15 &5t 4
Mr. Li Lin 223856 4E

Mr. Yang Shiyuan 5ttt iz 5o 4
Mr. Sun Rui &5t 4

Mr. Ge Xuyu B JEF L4

Mr. Wang Yong ST B %t

Mr. Li Fei =504

Mr. Law Kin Ho Z&f# 55t &

Mr. Tan Song Kwang BRYA Y o4

All directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to
participating any suitable training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) was established on 3 November 2015
comprising 3 independent non-executive directors namely,
Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Li Fei and Mr. Tan Song Kwang. Mr.
Law Kin Ho is the chairman of the Audit Committee. No
member of the Audit Committee is @ member of the former
or existing auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company
and to provide recommendations and advices to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor as well as their terms of appointment.
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According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least four times a year.

Five audit committee meetings were held for the year ended
31 December 2016. The attendance of each member is set
out as follows:

Name of members of Audit Committee

BEREEEHRENE

Mr. Law Kin Ho ZBfi& =4t 4
Mr. Li Fei Z=R5 4
Mr. Tan Song Kwang BRAA Yt 54

At the audit committee meetings during the year, in
performing its duties in accordance with its terms of
reference, the work performed by the Audit Committee
includes:

(@ review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b) recommendation to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, of the re-appointment of external auditor
and approval of their remuneration;

(c) determination of the nature and scope of the audit;
and

(d) review the financial statements for relevant periods
and discuss corporate governance practice.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Audit
Committee meetings will be sent to all committee members
for their comment and records within a reasonable time
after the meetings and the full minutes will be kept by the
company secretary who is also the secretary of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and is enabled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense, to discharge its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 3
November 2015 comprising three directors namely, Mr.
Li Fei, Mr. Tan Song Kwang and Mr. Sun Rui. Mr. Li Fei is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
at the Company’s website and on the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include to make recommendation to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
directors and senior management of the Group, having
the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors of the
Group and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and making recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of the non-executive directors.

During the year, one remuneration committee meeting
was held and the remuneration of the directors and
senior management has been discussed. The members’
attendance is shown as follows:

Name of members of Remuneration Committee

FHEEEREHE

Mr. Li Fei 254
Mr. Tan Song Kwang BRAAYE 54
Mr. Sun Rui &858 4

The emolument payable to directors depends on their
respective contractual terms under the service contracts
and the appointment letters, and as recommended by
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the directors’
emolument are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and is enabled to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to discharge its
responsibilities.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) was established on 3 November
2015 comprising the five directors namely, Mr. Philip Jian
Yang, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Tan Song Kwang, Mr. Li Fei and
Mr. Ge Xuyu. Mr. Philip Jian Yang is currently the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board on regular basis, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors. In considering
the nomination of new directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates,
especially their experience in program production and event
organisation and/or other professional areas.
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One nomination committee meeting was held during the
year ended 31 December 2016. No change has been
proposed to the structure, size and composition of the
Board during the meeting and the Nomination Committee
had also confirmed the independence of an independent
non-executive director who would be retired and offer
himself for re-election at 2016 AGM and the diversity of the
Board.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of members of Nomination Committee

REZEEHREHE

Mr. Philip Jian Yang #5 &5t 4
Mr. Li Fei =R 504E

Mr. Law Kin Ho ZBf&Z 5t 4

Mr. Tan Song Kwang BRI ¢ 4
Mr. Ge Xuyu B JEF L4

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and is enabled to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to discharge its
responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets
out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and also to enhance the
quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stated in the above. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
directors. Three of the directors are independent non-
executive directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background and skills.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information
to the Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial
position and prospects of the business of the Company so
as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board was
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and the
Board has prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. The responsibility of the external
auditor is to form an independent opinion, based on
their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company. A statement by auditor about
their reporting responsibility is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board oversees the overall risk
management of the Group and endeavours to identify,
control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risks and the relevant measures have been disclosed in
the report of the directors on page 40 to 65 of this report.
The risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Each department of the Company would choose certain
material risk events in its field every year and assess and
grade the possibility of occurrence and influence of risk
events to determine the scope of material risk of the year
together with the management of the Company. Each
functional department prepares counteractions to deal with
material risks in its field and report the execution situation
regularly.
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The Company does not have an internal audit function and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to
set up an internal audit function within the Group in light of
the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It
was decided that the Board would be directly responsible
for internal control of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Board reviews the risk management and internal
controls annually. The Board has conducted a review of, and
is satisfied with the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2016 as well as the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has formulated its guidelines, with
an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality
requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees for the
services provided by to the Company’s auditor are set out
as follows:

Audit services iz iR
Non-audit services FEEAZ AR

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Kwong Yu was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 30 April 2015. The selection,
appointment or dismissal of the company secretary is
approved by the Board. Mr. Ho is an employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The biographical details of Mr. Ho are set out under
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

For the year under review, Mr. Ho has confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (‘EGM”).

Right to convene EGM

Any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal office as
set out in the manner below, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit it to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 4502, 45/F, One Midtown, 11 Hoi Shing Road,
Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong, and such may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will ask the Board to convene
an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered members. On
the contrary, if the request which has been verified is not in
order, the shareholders will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as requested.
If within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed by the Company to the requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all the registered
members for consideration of the proposal raised by the
requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies according to
the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@ Atleast 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less
than 10 business days) if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company;

(b) At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing (and not
less than 20 business days) if calling for an annual
general meeting or the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in EGM.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to purpose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2011 Revision). However,
shareholders are requested to follow Article 58 of the
Company’s Articles for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above. Pursuant
to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other than a director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
directors for election, be eligible for election as a director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date
of such general meeting. The written notice must state that
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of
the Company to propose a person for election as director is
posted on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. These include the annual general
meeting, the annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices,
announcements and circulars and the Company’s website
at www.ntmediabj.com.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there had been
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ENVIRONMENT
Emissions

The Group is engaged in the businesses of program
production, event organisation, mobile live broadcasting and
Entertainment On Demand System. The operations of the
Group do not have significant impact to the environment
and do not generate hazardous waste. However, the Group
take steps to closely monitor and manage the environmental
effect of the operations.

The Group aims to reduce the energy consumption and
carbon emissions and always seeks less harmful ways to
the environment in the operations. The Group constantly
incorporate green principles into each project, for example
the environmental harmfulness and the capacity of energy-
saving of materials and equipment used in events during
the selection of suppliers. Furthermore, at the Group’s
offices, the indoor temperature and the running time of
air-conditioning system are controlled to reduce energy
consumption and carbon emissions.

Use of resources

Due to the Group’s business nature, the energy, power and
water utilisation of the Group is relatively low. The Group
is committed to building an environmental friendly working
environment that conserve natural resources. The Group
strive to minimise the environmental impact by saving
electricity, encouraging recycle of office supplies and using
environmental friendly equipments and tools in the program
production and event organisation.

The water consumption of the Group is minimal. For
office electricity control, the Group require employees to
confirm that lights and electronic appliances are switched
off before they leave the office, also energy consumption
of an electronic appliance will be the priority consideration
before purchase. For office consumables consumption
management, the Group encourages its employees to
handle documents electronically. When the use of paper
is required, only formal and confidential documents can
use single-sided printing, other documents are required
to use double-sided printing. In addition, we will arrange
conference calls or video conference instead of face-to-face
meetings where possible.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group seeks to work toward environmental best
practice. This involves giving careful consideration to various
operational aspects and activities within the value chain to
minimise any environmental impact. Green messages and
practical tips for green living are regularly circulated amongst
employees to achieve environmental sustainability.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Group and
also provide driving force for the continuous innovation of
the Group. The Group rewards and recognises performing
staff by providing a competitive remuneration package
and implementing a sound performance appraisal system
with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training
and providing opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. Also, in order to provide a good and fair
working environment and safeguards the well-being of the
employees, the Group seriously considers all those valuable
opinions from the employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony which can help the Group to build
a united and harmonious professional team.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and the relevant
administrative rules and measures are strictly enforced.
These rules and regulations specify the requirements relating
to employment, labour relations, employees’ remuneration
and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

We strictly complied with the laws, regulations and policies
regarding the social security in the PRC and Hong Kong'’s
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
Group paid social insurances, housing fund and mandatory
provident fund in a timely manner for all the staff.

Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. Sound management systems have
been established in occupational health and safety in strict
compliance with the regulations on occupational health and
safety in Hong Kong and the PRC. It builds a solid foundation
for safe operation. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group did not encounter any major accidents
during the operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERBRE

Development and Training

Skilled employees who are capable to meet the demands of
a dynamic industry is crucial to the success of the Group.
Training is an important way to improve the overall quality
and provide comprehensive development of the employees.
The Group has continuously perfected and modified the
employee training management system, established a mullti-
level training system, created various learning opportunities
for the employees, in order to enhance their competence,
job skills, knowledge and performance. The Group also
encourages the employees to identify their own personal
objectives for development, allowing them to grow together
with the Group.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction training for
new employees. Experienced employees will act as mentors
to guide the new comers on jobs. Such arrangements
can enhance the communication and team spirit, also
improve their technical skills and managerial capability and
encourage the learning and further development of the
employees at all levels. The Group arranges the trainings
designated according to the roles and responsibilities of the
employees, mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.

Labour Standards

The Group’s recruitment management system measures
clearly on the staff’s age requirement. Review and
verification of applicant’s identity information is required
during the recruitment process, and recruitment of child
labor is strictly prohibited. Applicant is also required to
provide document proofs of academic qualifications and
working experience for verifications, applicant who is
suspected to have false academic qualifications and working
experience will not be employed. The Group provides its
staff with a safe, health, comfortable working environment
with labor protection, reasonable remuneration and various
welfare. The Group enters employment contract with each
of its employee in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong and also prohibits
forced labor.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group values the partnership with suppliers and
works together to promote sustainable development of the
industry. The Group has been continuously optimising and
improving the supplier management system, regulating the
access, supervision, evaluation and departure of suppliers,
and constantly increasing specialisation and transparency
of supply chain management. The evaluation of a supplier
mainly includes background, qualification (for example,
holding necessary licenses to provide such services), quality
control of service, financial status, past performance in
similar service, fulfillment of contract, professionalism of
project team, operation in good integrity, social responsibility
are evaluated. Whether the supplier is qualified is determined
based on the evaluation results, and those suppliers failed
to meet the requirements ultimately will be disqualified.
The Group values communication with suppliers, including
continuous communication with suppliers in routine work
and establishing strategic cooperation with suppliers
through technical support and unique competitive
advantage, which can achieve win-win situation and
strengthen the cooperation with each other.

Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible standard
with all the services provided. The Group has established
relevant policies which cover service quality guarantee,
safety, fair advertising and after-sale service in order
to ensure relevant measures comply with the laws and
regulations.

The Group pays highly attention to the quality and
safety of services. The Group set up relevant quality and
safety inspection policies for different type of services,
communicate and confirm the working plan with customer
before the project starts and actively coordinate the process
of the project with customer. In 2016, the Group have
not had any complaints or request to terminate projects
due to poor quality and safety. If a complaint should arise,
the Company will immediately assess the complaint and
conduct an internal investigation into the matter to identify
the source of the issue. The Group has close connection
with customers. If the customers do not satisfy the quality
and the safety of the services, the Group arranges sufficient
channels and staffs for customers to communicate and
provide the solutions to the problems as soon as possible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERBRE

The routine work of the Group always involves the
intellectual property rights of customers, suppliers and
the Group, therefore protection of intellectual property
rights is extremely important to the Group. The Group
adds protective clauses to the contracts entered into
with customers and suppliers to safeguard the intellectual
property rights. The Group’s legal department also reviews
every operational contract to ensure that the contract
safeguard the intellectual property rights of each other.
Furthermore, The Group also request technical specialists
to sign strict confidentiality agreements. The Group also
complies with relevant legislation of data privacy. All
confidential data of customers can only be assessed by
the staffs who are responsible for the projects for relevant
clients.

With respect to fair advertising, the Group requires that
employees of sales department must provide customer
with accurate and true information on the Group’s services.
Hotline and e-mail are also available for customers’ enquiries
on service details in order to provide better before-and-after-
sale services.

Anti-corruption

All of the Group’s operations comply with local and national
legislation on standards of conduct, such as with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong and relevant
legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to code
of business ethics and put any corruption bribe behaviour
to an end as stipulated in the employment contracts. In
the cases of conflict of interest, it must be reported to the
Group’s management. Employees who engage in business
operations and represent the Company’s professional
image, are strictly prohibited to use business opportunities
or power for personal interest or benefit.

Public tendering will be made for any project in larger sum of
amount where at least three suppliers are invited for tender.
Service contracts in different amount are required to be
examined and approved by different management.
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Community
Community Investment and involvement

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities in
order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a beautiful and
peaceful community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together with
various community partners, the Group believes can bring a
tremendous impact on the sustainable development of the
communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It gives
employees the opportunities to find out more about the
issues about the society and environment and reinforce the
Group’s corporate values.

The Group will consider from time to time to donate to
charitable organisations when the Group records profit after
tax and have sufficient cash flow.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSHEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Philip Jian Yang, aged 54, is an executive director
and the president and chief executive officer of our Group.
Mr. Yang is the son of the founders of the Group. Mr. Yang
has been primarily responsible for the overall operations,
management, business development and strategic planning
of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, he was appointed
as the general manager of Beijing Zhonglu Intelligence
Cultural Development Co., Ltd. in November 1994. Mr.
Yang graduated from the Business Institute of Beijing
(currently Beijing Technology and Business University) with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration and commerce
in July 1983.

Mr. Li Lin, aged 36, is an executive director and vice
president of our Group. Mr. Li has been primarily responsible
for the development of the Group’s business in the
production of programs and hosting of events. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Li was an artist at Shanghai Lin’s
Records. From 2006 to 2008, he served as the general
manager at Shanghai Youcheng Culture Communications
Co., Ltd. From 2008 to 2013, he served as the chairman
of the board of directors at Beijing Jushi Youcheng Culture
Media Co., Ltd., of which he was a founder.

Mr. Yang Shiyuan, aged 41, is an executive director and
deputy chief executive officer of our Group. Mr. Yang has
been primarily responsible for our Group’s business in
largescale performance events, such as awards ceremonies
and movie premieres. He joined our Group in October 2002
as a project assistant and was promoted to the position of
project manager in August 2004. Since October 2009, he
served as a project director in our Group.

Mr. Sun Rui, aged 32, is an executive director and an
art director of the Group. Mr. Sun has been primarily
responsible for the production of the Group’s programs,
planning performance events and supervising on art and
stage effects. Prior to joining our Group, in September 2005,
he worked at the Beijing Dance Academy Youth Dance
Company. Mr. Sun served as the art director of Starry
Knight Entertainment Co., Ltd. since September 2011 and
the executive director of Beijing Great Wise Media Co., Ltd.
since January 2013. Mr. Sun graduated from the Beijing
Dance Academy with a bachelor’s degree in July 2005. He
graduated from Beijing Normal University with a master’s
degree in fine arts in 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ge Xuyu, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
director of our Group on 21 April 2015. Mr. Ge has been
primarily responsible for seeking investment and acquisition
opportunities and managing the investment project of the
Group. Mr. Ge has been serving as the general manager
of Mongolian Desert Resources LLC since December
2010. He is currently certified as a senior accountant in
the PRC. During May 1983 to February 2002, he worked
at China Construction 4th Engineering Bureau 6th Corp.
Limited holding financial positions and was promoted to
senior accountant in August 2001. From February 2003 to
December 2010, he served as a deputy general manager of
Shenzhen Dongrunda Investments Development Co., Ltd..
Mr. Ge graduated from Anhui Open University majoring in
financial accounting in 1990. He obtained the qualification as
an accountant in October 1994.

Mr. Wang Yong, aged 48, was appointed as a
nonexecutive director of our Group on 21 April 2015. Mr.
Wang has been primarily responsible for supervising our
Group’s overall management and strategic planning. Mr.
Wang has been working as a deputy managing director at
Beijing Tianyi Jinxiu Co., Ltd. since 2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Fei, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of our Group on 3 November 2015.
Mr. Li is currently a professor of marketing at the School
of Economics and Management and a deputy director of
the China Retail Research Center of Tsinghua University.
He is also the vice president of Chinese Business History
Association. Mr. Li taught marketing and retail management
at Beijing Business Management College from July 1983
to April 2002. Since May 2002, Mr. Li has been teaching
marketing, retail management and luxurious product
marketing at the School of Economics and Management of
Tsinghua University. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing Institute
of Business with a bachelor’s degree in business and
economics in 1983 and a master’s degree in business and
economics in 1988. In 2002, he obtained a doctorate degree
in Economics from Renmin University of China. Mr. Li was an
independent director of Shandong Wohua Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002107), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, between April 2006 and April
2009 and an independent non-executive director of Huiyin
Household Appliances (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (stock code:
1280), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, between
March 2010 and July 2011. Since April 2014, Mr. Li has
been serving as an independent director of Beijing Cuiwei
Tower Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603123), a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Since March 2015, he has also
been serving as an independent director of Beijing Capital
Retailing Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600723), a company
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Tan Song Kwang, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of our Group on 3
November 2015. Mr. Tan has been a director of the Financial
Advisory Department of Stratus Capital Pte Ltd. since 2005
and an independent director, chairman of the nomination
committee and member of the remuneration and audit
committees of Oriental Group Ltd. (SGX:5FI) from February
2004 to December 2016. From May 2012 to January
2014, he served as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the remuneration committee, member of the
nomination and audit committees of China Paper Holdings
Ltd (SGX:C71). Mr. Tan graduated from National University
of Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in arts, majoring in
economics and sociology, in 1991.

Mr. Law Kin Ho, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Group on 3
November 2015. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. He
has extensive experience in the auditing and accounting
fields in Hong Kong and is currently a practising certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Law worked with
the Stock Exchange from July 1994 to August 1995 and
Ernst & Young from July 1989 to June 1994. He was an
independent non-executive director of Coastal Greenland
Limited (stock code: 1124), from July 2002 and resigned in
December 2012. He was also an independent nonexecutive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148) from July 2008 to March 2010, both being
companies, listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Law is
currently acting as an independent non-executive director
of Lai Fung Holdings (stock code: 1125) since March 2009,
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Law
graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist College with an
honours diploma in accounting in 1989 and a bachelor’s
degree in accounting in 1990.

Note:

Each of the Directors does not have any relationship with any other
Directors and any member of our senior management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ho Kwong Yu, aged 31, was appointed as the chief
financial officer of our Group and the company secretary of
our Company on 30 April 2015. Mr. Ho has been primarily
responsible for accounting and financial management and
company secretarial matters of our Group. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ho worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from January 2008 to February 2015. Mr. Ho graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree of business administration (Honours) in professional
accountancy. Mr. Ho has been a certified public accountant
registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2011.

Ms. Yang Jianping, aged 62, is a deputy chief executive
officer of our Group. Ms. Yang has been primarily
responsible for the management of the Group’s finance,
human resources and administrative matters. Ms. Yang
graduated from Beijing Open University with a bachelor’s
degree in finance and accounting in July 1988. She attained
the qualification of an intermediary accountant in December
1992.

Mr. Wan Shuxing, aged 48, is the chief engineer of the
Group. Mr. Wan has been primarily responsible for the
construction and implementation of the Group’s stage art
projects. From July 1991 to December 2002, Mr. Wan
worked at China Construction 1st Engineering Bureau 4th
Corp. Limited. Mr. Wan graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in industrial and
residential construction in July 1991.

Mr. Yao Qinrong, aged 33, is the chief executive officer of
Capital Land, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Yao was one
of the foundation shareholders of Capital Land. Mr. Yao has
been primarily responsible for the operations, management,
business development and strategic planning of Capital
Land. From March 2010 to December 2015, Mr. Yao had
been an assistant president of 1905 (Beijing) Network
Technology Co. Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jian, aged 50, is the president of Capital Land,
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Zhao was one of the
foundation shareholders of Capital Land. Mr. Zhao has been
primarily responsible for marketing of Entertainment On
Demand System of Capital Land. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Zhao had been a chairman and a general manager
of Chengdu Film Group Limited from August 2013 to
December 2014 and a president and a chief executive officer
in the PRC region of SMI Culture Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2366).
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The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to
present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group had launched the mobile
live broadcasting and Entertainment On Demand System
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 73 of this report and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
page 74 of this report.

The financial position of the Company as at 31 December
2016 is set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has utilised
approximately HK$56.7 million of the net proceeds of
approximately HK$101.2 million raised from the Placing in
accordance with the intended use of proceeds set out in the
Prospectus. Details of the intended uses and utilised amount
are set out on page 13 to 17 of this report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in page 75 and note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserve available for distribution as at 31

December 2016 was approximately RMB100.5 million
(2015: RMB85.5 million).
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did
not made any charitable contributions (2015: HK$650,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

A review of the financial performance and business of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 17 of
this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, major risks are summarised below.

Reliance on limited number of customers

The Group derived a significant portion of our revenue
from a limited number of customers. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the five largest customers of the
Group contributed 85.4% of total revenue to the Group.
There is a risk that these significant customers to cancel or
early terminate the contract and no assurance that these
significant customers will continue their business relationship
with the Group or that the revenue generated from the
customers will increase or be maintained in the future. The
Group will continue to expand the customer base to mitigate
the risk.

Intense competition

The television broadcasting content production market is
highly fragmented and more players are entering the market,
while existing dominant players are growing. The Group also
face pricing pressure from the television stations customers
which have the final say as to which program to play. The
Group also faces threat of substitution by films and television
series and news programs which take up higher proportions
of viewership share compared to television broadcasting
content such as variety shows.

The competition in the event organisation industry is also
relatively fierce. Besides facing competition with other
event organisers, television stations, online video networks
and film distributors with high backward integration ability,
corporate in-house public relations which can organise their
own corporate activities like annual party and companies
well-established in other related fields such as public
relations agencies, also are the potential competitors of
event organisation business of the Group.
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Uncertainties of market demand of recently developed
businesses

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
material investment in the mobile live broadcasting and
Entertainment On Demand System businesses. These
businesses are in the fast-growing internet market and the
Group believes these businesses will have great potential as
the internet is well-developed and the huge demand in pan-
entertainment are expected to be unearthed in the PRC.
However, mobile live broadcasting and Entertainment On
Demand System businesses are relatively new in internet
industry. There is lack of historical market data to have a
reliable estimation on its demand growth and no assurance
that our optimistic expectation of these businesses can be
realised. Also, mobile live broadcasting and Entertainment
On Demand System are not necessities, the demand of
these businesses may fall significantly if the economy in
the PRC faces material downturn with the decrease in
purchasing power of potential consumers. The management
of the Group will closely monitor the operation and the
market change of these recently developed businesses.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Discussions on the Group’s relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers is contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
30 to 35 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies is
contained in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 30 to 35 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company
itself is listed on GEM. The establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would

oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last 4 financial years is set out on page 160
of this report.

PURCHASES, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Philip Jian Yang (Chairman)
Mr. Li Lin

Mr. Yang Shiyuan

Mr. Sun Rui

Non-executive directors

Mr. Ge Xuyu
Mr. Wang Yong

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Li Fei
Mr. Law Kin Ho
Mr. Tan Song Kwang

One-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles, providing that
every director shall be retired at least once every three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring
at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter.

The non-executive directors of the Company were not
appointed for a specific term but their respective terms of
office are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Articles. The rotation clause sets up a mechanism to
ensure that all Directors of the Company shall retire at least
once every three years and be eligible for re-election.
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Each of our independent non-executive directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company.
Each letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing
on the date of the letter of appointment and shall continue
thereafter subject to a maximum of three years unless
terminated by either party giving at least one month’s notice
in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has or
is proposed to enter into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company or any of the subsidiaries of
the Company (other than contracts expiring or determinable
by the Group within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Directors of the Company had a material beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” below and “Related party transactions” in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, there is
no contract of significance to the business of the Group
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, or a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a part, during the year. During
the year, no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries was made.

The related party transactions of the Group constituted fully
exempted connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the

senior management of the Group are set out on page 36 to
39 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, the interest and short position
of the Directors of the Company and chief executive of the
Group in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of
listed issuers as referred to in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing
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Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in ordinary shares of the (i) REQARNZERNEE
Company
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Number of capital
Name of Director/Chief Executive ~ Capacity and nature of interest shares ERITIRE
EE TETHRASRE BaEME RHEE BREs
Goldbless International Limited Beneficial owner et 227,500,000 18.59
(“Goldbless”) EniEg A
EXBEBRERAR([23%E])
Mr. Wang Yong Interest of controlled corporation (™ ? 227,500,000 18.59
TEEAE REERER 1
Alpha Master Global Limited Beneficial owner M°¢2 50,388,000 412
(“Alpha Master”) EnlER AWEY
Mr. Li Lin Interest of controlled corporation (note 2) 50,388,000 412
HEREE REEB IR 042
Top Select Ventures Limited Beneficial owner M9
(“Top Select”) ey 2PN 3,673,118 0.30
FEERARBRAT([EEAR])
Mr. Yao Qinrong Interest of controlled corporation (%9
S¢S S EE e an 5 3,673,118 0.30
Jumbo Success Global Limited Beneficial owner e 4
(“Jumbo Success”) EnEa AW 3,673,118 0.30
ERRFBRAR([ERIRK])
Mr. Zhao Jian Interest of controlled corporation 4
HREEE PRI EE R e 3,673,118 0.30
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(1)

Notes:

The entire issued share capital of Goldbless is owned
by Mr. Wang Yong. Under the SFO, Mr. Wang Yong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in the
name of Goldbless.

The entire issued share capital of Alpha Master is owned
by Mr. Li Lin. Under the SFO, Mr. Li Lin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares registered in the name of Alpha
Master.

The entire issued share capital of Top Select Ventures
Limited is owned by Mr. Yao Qinrong, the director of
a subsidiary of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Yao
Qinrong is deemed to be interested in all the shares
registered in the name of Top Select.

The entire issued share capital of Jumbo Success Global
Limited is owned by Mr. Zhao Jian, the director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhao Jian
is deemed to be interested in all the shares registered in
the name of Jumbo Success.

Long positions in ordinary shares of US$1.00

each

in Youth Success Holdings Limited (“Youth

Success”)

Name of Director

(i)

Bt

PENPHEBTRAMTBALIE - WIEBH LY
0] EBAERE SRS ZERBDNTERY
B -

Alpha Master 8% 555 E TR N R st £ 1B © 1RIE
EHRENED] - BaRstE W3R Alpha Master 5
c BRI AR (7P B e

FREBIRA 2 B BITRAB AR A B A —Z [ 2
FIREFL R IE LT © RIFEFRBRIFH) - B
R EWERBRIAFEEIRE FZ BRI T ER D T H#E

RS o

BRI 2 802 BITRA B A R FJA B A —Z B 2
IR EFEB RS LRE - REEZRHRED - BiEx
LRI BRI BB T BRI P B e o

7 Youth Success Holdings Limited ([ Youth
Success]) BREBE1EAETBERNTRE

Percentage of

Number of shares shareholding

ExE8W R EE REBNEIL
Mr. Philip Jian Yang et 7 1273 12.73%
8 | £ A (1)

Mr. Yang Shiyuan (et 2 148 1.48%
BSR4 A (et2)

Mr. Sun Rui e 9 117 1.17%

FA SR 5 ()

Notes:

Mr. Philip Jian Yang holds the shares of Youth Success
through Ever Ring Holdings Limited which is wholly-
owned by him.

Mr. Yang Shiyuan holds the shares through State Trade
Global Limited which is wholly-owned by him.

Mr. Sun Rui holds the shares of Youth Success through
Shitian Limited which is wholly-owned by him.
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5 RII5E A BB 2 B A YK IERR B IR 2 Al# A Youth
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ISR IE 43R B R 2 E 1A ) State Trade Global Limited

JZ 5 Youth Success #IfR 7

Rk FEAR T EHF I KGR A]# A Youth
Success A9/ 17
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of
the directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than
a Director of the Company or chief executive of the Group)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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B EXFTIREEN G RZE—XE+-_A=1+—8  #i&
AAFIEZEREEITHAERNARI K EEMAREEE (F
ERBH NEIEEAEXVE) ERRD - ABREkGK &E
FHRmEALARERES MG HKROE B2 FENEAR
AVE R - SRR AIZER E TR BISE 5.46 18Pl =897
%%?i’%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ’\]fﬁi%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ@ﬂ&Eﬁ??&ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ%?&
FOKB ©

TERRREMATRADDRERAABDBR S ORHER

V=1

s

“E-RF+_A=1t—H8 BREEFLRPEHRIE
336 IRAFENELMAARHE » PIIAL (RARESRHA
FEEZTHABRINRER AR KRR HF#

mEOKA

il

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAENTZBERNEE
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
Capacity and Number of capital
Name of Shareholder nature of interest shares ERITIRE
RERER fEEME ROEAR BAOBEIHE
Youth Success Beneficial owner ot 7 641,868,000 52.46
gé}ﬁﬁ/\(ﬁﬁﬁv
Guang Rui Investments Limited Beneficial owner; 654,840,000 53.52
(“Guang Rui”) interest in corltrolled corporat‘ion (note 1)
HIHIEBRAR ([ HHH]) EnEE N R AE R )
Mr. Yang Shaogian (“Mr. Yang”) Interest in controlled Corporation % 7; 654,840,000 53.52
BEERAEE ([BEED interest of spouse 2
YA B Rz 1) PR e a2
Ms. Mu Sufang (“Ms Mu”) Interest in controlled Corporation % 7; 654,840,000 53.52
2xF([zt]) interest of spouse 2
YA B Rz 07 PR e a2
Wonder Solutions International Beneficial owner (9 155,000,000 12.67
Group Limited BmER A
(“Wonder Solutions”)
Mr. Chow Hai Yen Interest in controlled corporation "% 155,000,000 12.67
BEIREE R A B e 2 =)
FERARZERERAR —E-REFERS
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Notes:

1. Youth Success and Guang Rui owns 406,890,000 shares and
12,972,000 shares respectively, representing 33.26% and 1.06%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The issued share
capital of Youth Success is legally and beneficially owned as to
82.37% by Guang Rui. Under the SFO, Guang Rui is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares registered in the name of Youth
Success. The entire issued share capital of Guang Rui is legally
and beneficially owned as to 60% by Mr. Yang and 40% by Ms.
Mu. By virtue of the shareholders voting agreement entered into
by Mr. Yang, Ms. Mu, Youth Success, Mr. Li Lin, Alpha Master,
Ms. Yang Qi, Qiao Tian Limited (“Qiao Tian”), Mr. Wang Yong
and Goldbless, Youth Success is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Alpha Master, Qiao Tian and Goldbless in
aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

2. Ms. Mu is the spouse of Mr. Yang, therefore she is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Yang is deemed to be
interested, and vice versa.

3. Wonder Solutions owns 155,000,000 Shares, representing
12.67% of the issued share capital of our Company. The entire
issued share capital of Wonder Solutions is legally and beneficially
owned by Mr. Chow Hai Yen.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme on 3
November 2015 (the “Share Option Scheme”) and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from the date of its adoption and enables the
Company to grant share options to the eligible persons
(including any executive director, non-executive director and
independent non-executive director, advisor and consultant
of the Group) (the “Eligible Person(s)”) as incentives or
rewards for their contributions to the Group. No share option
was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed since its adoption
by the Company and there is no outstanding share option
under the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon the exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Group from time to time (the “Other
Schemes”) must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue of as at 18 November 2015 (the
“Listing Date”), the date which the Company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”)
provided that the share options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Shares Option Scheme or Other Schemes
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. On the basis of 1,200,000,000 Shares in
issue on the Listing Date, the Scheme Mandate Limit will be
equivalent to 120,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date and 8.43% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this report.
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1. Youth Success & #1557 5 A 406,890,000 % K 12,972,000 f%
BR17 - AR A2 #7TAR A 33.26% K 1.06% ° Youth Success
HIE FTR A A IS LR E B 82.87% © IRIFFHRATE
10 - KI5 #5782 B Youth Success £ 2 Z a0 AT B IR (77 1
B o K2 E BITREABE A ERZL LD FIEZER
EntEB60%K40% ° IRIEEEE - £24 - Youth Success *
R E 4 - Alpha Master » 5 HZ 4 X ER R Al ([
X)) FBEERSFETT VAR E 5% + Youth Success ik
PR R KI5 #2E BR Alpha Master « BIX R £E4 HiF
BHIRG PG o

2. FXIRBALERIE - B REEBREGLERERES

BT BRI G B - R

3. Wonder Solutions #£ 4 155,000,000 A% 17 + 157K 2 715 #7748
7K 12.67% ° Wonder Solutions £ &5 E 27 THE A A &, &5 5L £ 4
FEREFEE °

BEXFBREEN R_T—ARF+_A=+—8 &
AR BP0 SRR () B0 B i s 5K B R SR FE AN A A
RI5RE 7 MG 15015 336 IRRTF BRI ERMA °

RS

ARRER _ZE—RF+— A= BRMBAEL 2 ([ B
ETE ) - B AEHIUERIIN - BN ERRMAA
HIRERT M 10 FER A - BRI SIEA QR I AAER
AL (BRASETANTES  IFTEF - BT
EELER) (AEBALDERLBERE ERAREFHA
SEPMEERMEZRIRNEH - B AR ARNBAEBIIA
K EhERT SR T EBREER L - 1TE - EREK
M BIMERTTERERE -

AR 5 BB AR RE T B I AN 2 B B SR AN A (o) Bt R AR A =T
EI(THMFE DS TRENFEEBRERETEm T
HARFIRNDBESE XN SBE-_E—RAF+—A+\H
([EWMHED (RRARREZATAIER T2 BH) EmA
HIE BT ARRIRMAI10% ([FTEIIRE LR ) » HEIRIEE
ARt 2 2k B (D 5 B MM S TR R BRI A S R 2 5T AT &I
R FBR o % F HHIE 3171,200,000,000 f% B 17 A 24
SHE - STEIERE ERASHEE R 120,000,000 BEAR D - HEE
R HEE BT A 10% AR S B EIAR A A2 317
A% 19 89 8.43% o



T

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to
each Eligible Person under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, and
provided that if approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such Eligible Person and his associates
abstaining from voting, the Company may make a further
grant of share options to such Eligible Person (the “Further
Grant”) notwithstanding that the Further Grant would result
in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes to
such Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding Options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of the Further Grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the Eligible Person
under the Share Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant. The share
option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days
from the date on which the share option is granted.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company
subject to the Share Options Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Eligible Person
and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the share options,
which must be a trading day of the Stock Exchange; (i)
the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five trading days of the Stock Exchange immediately
preceding the date of grant of the share options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

An share option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board to each
Eligible Person provided that the period within which the
share option must be exercised shall not be more than 10
years from the date of the grant of share option.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole and any
part of the Company’s business were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
85.4% of total turnover and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 26.1% of total
sales. The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 54.4% of total direct costs during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and purchases from the largest
supplier included therein amounted to approximately 21.5%
of total direct costs.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules), or any of the shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or its five largest suppliers during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2017, the Company had completed
the placing of 200,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company (with aggregate nominal value of HK$2,000,000)
(the “Placing Share(s)”) to not less than six placees at the
placing price of HK$0.265 (the “Placing Price”) per Placing
Share (the “2017 Placing”). The Placing Price was agreed
with the placing agent in the placing agreement dated 13
December 2016 and the closing price quoted on the Stock
Exchange per ordinary share of the Company as at that
date was HK$0.295. The gross proceeds from the 2017
Placing is HK$53,000,000 and the net proceeds from the is
approximately HK$50,700,000 after deducting the placing
commission and other related expenses. The net issue price
was approximately HK$0.25 per Placing Share. Each of the
placees and its ultimate beneficial owners (where applicable)
is an independent third party and none of the placees has
become a substantial shareholder (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) after the completion of the 2017 Placing. The
Group intend to use the net proceeds from the 2017 Placing
for the general working capital. The 2017 Placing was a
good opportunity to raise additional funds as working capital
of the Group without any interest burden and can broaden
the Company’s capital base and shareholders base.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company and
their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2016 had any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group or any other
conflicts of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance report is set out on
page 18 to 29 of this report.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Beijing Emphasis Media Co., Ltd.* (“Emphasis Media”),
Starry Knight Entertainment Co., Ltd.* (“Starry Knight”),
Beijing Joy Star Production Co., Ltd.* (“Joy Star”), Beijing
New Image Media Co. Ltd.* (“New Image”) and Beijing Great
Wise Media Co.*, Ltd. (“Great Wise”) (collectively defined
as the “PRC Contractual Entities”) are deemed to be the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to the
Contractual Arrangement.

Summary of the information in relation to the Contractual
Arrangement are as follows.

Information on the PRC Contractual Entities and their
Registered Owners

Emphasis Media was owned as to 10% by Mr. Yang and
as to 63.83% by New Element, with the remaining 26.17%
equity interest is held as to 12% by Mr. Li Lin, 5% by Ms.
Yang Qi, 4% by Mr. Sun Rui, 1.5% by Mr. Yang Shiyuan,
1.5% by Ms. Yang Jianping, 1.5% by Mr. Guan Rongliang
and 0.67% by Mr. Wan Shuxing (collectively referred as
“Relevant Shareholders”).

Each of Starry Knight, New Image and Great Wise is wholly-
owned by Emphasis Media.

Joy Star is held as to 97% by Ms. Mu and 3% by Mr. Yang.
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Business Overview of the PRC Contractual Entities

Emphasis Media, New Image and Great Wise are principally
engaged in the provision of program production services in
the PRC.

Starry Knight and Joy Star are principally engaged in the
provision of program production and event organisation
services in the PRC.

The PRC Contractual Entities hold certain licences and
permits required for the operation of abovementioned
principal business (including The Permit to Produce and
Distribute Radio or Television Programs and operate as a
performance brokerage enterprise with the relevant license).
According to the Guidance Catalogue of Industries for
Foreign Investment (2015 Version), radio and television
program production and operating companies falls
within the prohibited foreign-invested industry, and the
production of television programs (limited to Chinese-foreign
contractual joint ventures) and performance brokerage fall
within the restricted foreign-invested industry. The principal
activities of the Group are provision of program production
and event organisation services in the PRC, the sectors
where foreign investment is subject to significant restrictions
under PRC laws and regulations. Accordingly, we cannot
directly acquire any equity interest in the PRC Contractual
Entities, which hold certain licences and permits required for
the operation of the principal business of the Group.

As a result, New Talent Media Company Limited* (“New
Talent Media”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has entered into a series of agreements (the
“Contractual Arrangements”) narrowly tailored to provide
New Talent Media with control over the PRC Contractual
Entities and grant New Talent Media the right to acquire the
equity interests of the PRC Contractual Entities when and to
the extent permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.

Summary of the Major Terms under the Contractual
Arrangement

The Contractual Arrangements consist of: (a) the Business
Operating Agreements, (b) the Powers of Attorney, (c) the
Equity Interest Pledge Agreements, (d) the Exclusive Option
Agreements, (e) the Exclusive Technology Consultation and
Service Agreements and (f) the Spouse Undertakings (in the
case that the Relevant Shareholder is a natural person).
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Business Operating Agreements

Each of the PRC Contractual Entities and its Relevant
Shareholders entered into Business Operating Agreements
with New Talent Media on 18 May 2015 (the “Business
Operating Agreements”), pursuant to which at the request
of each of the PRC Contractual Entities, New Talent Media
may opt to serve as the performance guarantor for each
of the PRC Contractual Entities in any business operating
contracts, agreements or transactions that they entered into
with third parties. In such case, as a counter-guarantee,
each of the PRC Contractual Entities shall agree to pledge
all its operational account receivable and assets to New
Talent Media. If New Talent Media decides to serve as the
performance guarantor for any PRC Contractual Entities,
New Talent Media will enter into a written agreement with
the counterparties of such PRC Contractual Entities to
assume the guarantor’s responsibilities. As such, the PRC
Contractual Entities and the Relevant Shareholders will take
all necessary actions to implement the counter-guarantee
arrangement with New Talent Media.

Under the Business Operating Agreements, each of the PRC
Contractual Entities and its Relevant Shareholders agree
that, without obtaining New Talent Media’s written consent,
each of the PRC Contractual Entities shall not engage in any
transaction which may materially affect its asset, obligation,
right or business operation, including but not limit to:

(i) Borrowing or assuming any liabilities from any third
parties;

(i)  Selling to or acquiring from any third parties any assets
or rights, including but not limited to any intellectual
property rights;

(i)  Providing real rights of securities in relation to assets or
intellectual property rights to any third parties;

(iv)  Transferring any operational agreements to any third
parties.

Further, each of the PRC Contractual Entities and its
Relevant Shareholders agree to follow any recommendations
or guidance from New Talent Media in relation to each
of the PRC Contractual Entities’ employment matters,
daily operations and management, as well as financial
management policies. Each of the PRC Contractual Entities
and its Relevant Shareholders agree to appoint New Talent
Media’s nominees as its board directors, and each of the
PRC Contractual Entities will appoint the recommended New
Talent Media’s staff as its general manager, chief finance
officer, and for other senior management roles. If any of
abovementioned staff leave New Talent Media, whether
voluntarily or not, their roles in each of the PRC Contractual
Entities will be terminated.
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In addition, each of the PRC Contractual Entities and its
Relevant Parties agree to use New Talent Media as the
first resort for any performance guarantee or guarantees
for working capital borrowings. In such case, New Talent
Media has full discretion in deciding whether to provide such
guarantees, and the PRC Contractual Entities can resort to
other third parties if such request is turned down by New
Talent Media.

The relevant Business Operating Agreements have a term of
ten years and will be automatically renewed upon expiration
unless otherwise notified by New Talent Media. The relevant
Business Operating Agreements shall be terminated prior
to expiration when the business period of either New
Talent Media or the PRC Contractual Entities expires or is
terminated by any other reasons except that all rights and
obligations of New Talent Media or any PRC Contractual
Entities under such agreements have been transferred. If
any agreement between New Talent Media and any PRC
Contractual Entities is terminated or expired, New Talent
Media will have the right but not the obligation to terminate
all agreements between New Talent Media and any PRC
Contractual Entities, including but not limited to the Exclusive
Technology Consultation and Service Agreements.

Powers of Attorney

Each of the Relevant Shareholders entered into a power
of attorney on 18 May 2015 (the “Powers of Attorney”).
Pursuant to the Powers of Attorney, each of the Relevant
Shareholders irrevocably appoints designee(s) of our
Company, being the Directors or officers of the Company
who are not related to the shareholders of the PRC
Contractual Entities or his/her successor to act as his/her/
its attorney on his/her/its own behalf to exercise all rights
in connection with matters concerning his/her/its rights as
shareholder of the PRC Contractual Entities, including but
not limited to (i) selling or transferring all or part of his/her/
its equity interests; (i) exercising shareholders’ voting rights,
including nomination and election of director and nomination
and appointment of general manager; (i) signing meeting
minutes and resolutions; (iv) approving filing documents with
the relevant companies registry and/or other government
authorities in relation to the business operations of the PRC
Contractual Entities; (v) other matters decided or executed
by the shareholders.

Further, the Powers of Attorney shall remain effective for ten

years from the execution date or it can be terminated upon
the termination of the Business Operating Agreement.
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Equity Interest Pledge Agreements

The Relevant Shareholders and New Talent Media entered
into equity interest pledge agreements on 18 May 2015
(the “Equity Interest Pledge Agreements”). Under the Equity
Interest Pledge Agreements, the Relevant Shareholders
agreed to pledge all their respective equity interests in the
PRC Contractual Entities to New Talent Media, as a security
interest, to guarantee the performance of contractual
obligations and the payment of outstanding debts of the
Relevant Shareholders and the PRC Contractual Entities
under the Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements, Business Operating Agreements and such
other agreements to be entered into under the Contractual
Arrangements. The pledge in respect of a PRC Contractual
Entity takes effect upon the completion of registration
with the competent SAIC and shall remain valid until one
year after all the contractual obligations of the Relevant
Shareholders and such PRC Contractual Entity under
the relevant Contractual Arrangements have been fully
performed and all the outstanding debts of the Relevant
Shareholders and such PRC Contractual Entity under the
relevant Contractual Arrangements have been fully paid.
During the valid period of the pledge, absent prior written
consent of New Talent Media, the Relevant Shareholders
shall not create or agree to create any new pledge or any
other security on the equity interests of the PRC Contractual
Entities, nor assign or transfer any of the equity interests
of the PRC Contractual Entities or any rights or obligations
under this agreement.

The Equity Interest Pledge Agreements will be terminated
after one year upon fulfilment of all contractual obligations of
the Relevant Shareholders and such PRC Contractual Entity
under the relevant Contractual Arrangements.

Exclusive Option Agreements

Each of the PRC Contractual Entities and its Relevant
Shareholders entered into exclusive option agreements
with New Talent Media on 18 May 2015 (the “Exclusive
Option Agreements”), pursuant to which the Relevant
Shareholders irrevocably, exclusively and unconditionally
grant exclusive options to New Talent Media which entitles
New Talent Media to elect to purchase, when permitted
by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the
equity interests of the PRC Contractual Entities from the
Relevant Shareholders and/or all or any of assets of the PRC
Contractual Entities by itself or through its designee(s). In
the event that any of the options is exercised by New Talent
Media, the transfer price of the relevant equity interests
and assets shall be the legal minimum price under the
then-applicable PRC law. Any of such transfer is subject
to approval and registration with government authorities.
Subject to applicable PRC laws, each of the Relevant
Shareholders shall transfer all the consideration he/her/it
receives in relation to such sale of equity interest in the PRC
Contractual Entities at nil consideration as a gift to New
Talent Media or the designee(s) of New Talent Media after
receiving such consideration, after deduction of applicable
taxes and governmental fees.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreements, the PRC
Contractual Entities and the Relevant Shareholders shall not
sell, transfer, pledge or dispose of in any other manner the
legal or beneficial interest in any assets, business or income
of the PRC Contractual Entities. The PRC Contractual
Entities and the Relevant Shareholders undertake to
maintain the asset value of the PRC Contractual Entities
and not to take any action which may affect their business
operations or asset value. Absent prior written consent
of New Talent Media, the PRC Contractual Entities and
the Relevant Shareholders shall not (i) in any manner
supplement, change or amend the articles of association
of the PRC Contractual Entities, increase or decrease their
registered capital or change their structure of registered
capital in any other manner; or (i) engage in transactions
that could materially affect the assets, liabilities, rights or
operations of the PRC Contractual Entities, including (a)
incur debts, except those incurred in the ordinary course
of business or disclosed to and consented by New Talent
Media; (b) execute any material contracts with a value above
RMB100,000, except those entered into in the ordinary
course of business; (c) provide loans or guarantee; (d) merge
or consolidate with, acquire or invest in any entity; and (e)
distribute dividends or profits to the Relevant Shareholders.

In addition, each of the Relevant Shareholders will take
appropriate measures to maintain its shareholding in the
PRC Contractual Entities, including (i) not to, sell, transfer,
pledge or dispose of in any other manner, or allow any other
security interest to be created on the legal or beneficial
equity interest in the PRC Contractual Entities without
the prior written consent of New Talent Media, except for
the Equity Interest Pledge Agreements, and procure the
shareholders’ meeting of the PRC Contractual Entities
not to approve such matters; (i) for each exercise of the
equity purchase option, to cause the shareholders’ meeting
of the PRC Contractual Entities to vote on the approval
of the transfer of equity interests and any other action
requested by New Talent Media; and (i) to relinquish the
pre-emptive right (if any) the Relevant Shareholder is entitled
to in relation to the transfer of equity interest by any other
Relevant Shareholders to New Talent Media. Each of the
Relevant Shareholders will transfer to New Talent Media or
its designee(s), by way of gift, any profit, dividend, transfer
proceeds or any other interest arising from the equity
interests held by such Relevant Shareholder in the PRC
Contractual Entities. The PRC Contractual Entities and the
Relevant Shareholders shall, at the request of New Talent
Media, appoint any person nominated by New Talent Media
in its sole discretion as directors of the PRC Contractual
Entities. Each of the Relevant Shareholders irrevocably
undertakes that whenever requested by New Talent Media,
such shareholder will transfer, unconditionally all of the
equity interests held by him/her/it in the PRC Contractual
Entities to New Talent Media or its designee(s) at a price
equal to the price as determined in the circumstances where
New Talent Media exercises its option under the Exclusive
Option Agreements.
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The relevant Exclusive Option Agreements have a term of
ten years and will be automatically renewed upon expiration
unless otherwise notified by New Talent Media. The
relevant Exclusive Option Agreements shall be terminated
prior to expiration when the business period of either New
Talent Media or the PRC Contractual Entities expires or is
terminated by any other reasons except that all rights and
obligations of New Talent Media under such agreements
have been transferred to a third party.

Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service Agreements

New Talent Media entered into exclusive technology
consultation and service agreements with each of the
PRC Contractual Entities on 18 May 2015 (the “Exclusive
Technology Consultation and Service Agreements”),
pursuant to which each of the PRC Contractual Entities
agreed to engage New Talent Media as their exclusive
provider of technical and management consulting services
and other technology and consultancy services requested
by each of the PRC Contractual Entities from time to time to
the extent permitted under PRC laws in each of exchange
for service fees. In light of the services that New Talent
Media agreed to provide to the PRC Contractual Entities
pursuant to the Exclusive Technology Consultation and
Service Agreements, the service fees, subject to New Talent
Media’s adjustment, are equal to 100% of each of the PRC
Contractual Entities’ net profit after tax. In addition, New
Talent Media may at its absolute discretion lower the service
fees with reference to the operation cost and financial
budget relating to business development plan of each of the
PRC Contractual Entities. New Talent Media is also entitled
to make any other adjustments of the service fees at the end
of every quarter in accordance with the quarterly revenue
and profit of each of the PRC Contractual Entities under
HKFRSs.

In addition, absent the prior written consent of New
Talent Media, the PRC Contractual Entities shall not
assign or transfer any of the rights and/or obligations
under the Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements to any third party. Unless otherwise required
by the applicable PRC laws, the PRC Contractual Entities
shall not be entitled to terminate the Exclusive Technology
Consultation and Service Agreements either.
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The Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements also provide that New Talent Media has
the exclusive proprietary rights to all intellectual property
rights developed or created during the performance
of the Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements. The PRC Contractual Entities shall assign
their intellectual property rights to New Talent Media upon
request of New Talent Media. Our PRC Legal Adviser is of
the opinion that (i) it is legal for New Talent Media to hold
these intellectual property rights pursuant to the terms
of the Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements; and (i) that New Talent Media and the PRC
Contractual Entities are not in violation of the requirements
of Patent Law of the PRC, Trade Mark Law of PRC and
Copyright Law of the PRC regarding the ownership of
intellectual property rights.

The relevant Exclusive Technology Consultation and
Service Agreements have a term of ten years and will be
automatically renewed for consecutive terms of one year
upon expiry unless otherwise notified by New Talent Media.
The relevant Exclusive Technology Consultation and Service
Agreements shall be terminated prior to expiration in the
event that (a) the business period of either New Talent Media
or the PRC Contractual Entities expires or is terminated by
any other reasons except that all right and obligation of New
Talent Media under such agreements has been transferred
to a third party (b) New Talent Media unilaterally terminates
such agreements by advance written notice.

Spouse Undertakings

The spouse of each of the individual Relevant Shareholders,
if applicable, has signed an undertaking on 18 May
2015 (“Spouse Undertakings”). Pursuant to the Spouse
Undertakings, each of the spouses unconditionally and
irrevocably undertakes that:

(i) the spouse has been made fully aware of the
Contractual Arrangements and consented that such
Relevant Shareholder is the sole beneficiary of all the
rights and interests and solely assumes obligations
under the Contractual Arrangements; further, he/she
does not and will not have any interests or rights under
the Contractual Arrangements, nor assumes any
obligations thereunder;

(i) all the equity interests held by such Relevant
Shareholder in the PRC Contractual Entities shall be
deemed as assets solely owned by such Relevant
Shareholder, not mutual assets jointly owned by him/
her and the related Relevant Shareholder;

@iy  the spouse will not participate in the operation or
management of the PRC Contractual Entities, nor will
claim any interests or rights in the equities of the PRC
Contractual Entities;
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(iv)  the spouse has confirmed that the performance and
further amendment or termination of the Contractual
Arrangements by such Relevant Shareholder do
not require his/her authorisation or consent; in the
event of divorce (as the case may be), such Relevant
Shareholder has sole discretion to decide how to
dispose of his/her interests in the PRC Contractual
Entities; and

(v) in the event that the spouse obtains any interests
in the PRC Contractual Entities, he/she will be
subject to and abide by the terms of the Contractual
Arrangements as if he/she was a signing party to such
Contractual Arrangements, and at the request of New
Talent Media he/she will sign any documents in the
form and substance consistent with the Contractual
Arrangements.

Revenue and Assets in relation to the Contractual
Arrangement

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue
attributable to the PRC Contractual Entities (i.e. the
Contractual Arrangement) was approximately RMB75.5
million. As at 31 December 2016, the total asset and net
asset attributable to the PRC Contractual Entities was
approximately RMB101.7 million and RMB76.4 million
respectively.

Risks Related to the Contractual Arrangement

We rely on the Contractual Arrangements with the PRC
Contractual Entities for our operations in China, which may
not be as effective in providing operational control as direct
ownership.

We have relied and expect to continue to rely on the
Contractual Arrangements with the PRC Contractual Entities
to operate our program production business in China.
The Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing us with control over the PRC Contractual Entities
as direct ownership. If we had direct ownership of the PRC
Contractual Entities, we would be able to exercise our rights
as a shareholder to effect changes in the board of directors
of those entities, which in turn could effect changes, subject
to any applicable fiduciary obligations, at the management
level. However, under the Contractual Arrangements, we
rely on the performance by the PRC Contractual Entities and
their shareholders of their obligations under the contracts
to exercise control over the PRC Contractual Entities.
Therefore, the Contractual Arrangements with the PRC
Contractual Entities may not be as effective in ensuring our
control over our operations in China as direct ownership
would be.

Report of the Directors
EESWRE

v) ZBEBCHER  HEARRETRE—TEFT 8K
IANTHEFERERRE  HLIEE(RER
miE) - RIFZARRERR A 2 BIERE A REER
TEANERNED &

BEMED BEXE
WZFHR - WNRA
B RHR B AR L IR
BRI —BWEAX

V) T WEZBREEERTESNE
IR R IR AT AR BR 3 7838
BRASHRHENEIHNG - A
§>i%§%ﬁ%fﬁ&9ﬂ§tﬁﬁi

BRRESIRZBBEREE

HE-Z—XF+_A=Z+—HLLFE PHAYNEERE
Mz WAL H) HABARBISEEET R_Z
—AFE+-A=+—H FHEANBERECEELEN
BEEFEBISHLZHE) SRHEBARBI017TEETLAAR
764 HETT

HENRZHABNER

AL A RE LI BT S A B R A B KK FE P BTAR S 7
MR AE T B AR B XA TR ANTHE SR -

ARAHRBEEPBESHERNAORHEPRESMAE R
1T - WIRHIHAE LU DI PAMKHE - ZFE R HRHAR Y
WEEZMBERABIE TRMASTESOBRNK ST
HilHE o MBEMEETEENBRNEHAERE - HMIHE
TTEERCRERN  MAZFEENESS  AMAEXRRE
MERANZEEERRET - ATEEEEEmAES) - A
- RBELRHE - HAIKBERESOEE R EENRER
BITEHEME  NETBESOERITEEE - Bk - K
AREREAOBEBNAG ML EERA QBRG] EE
B ERVINEERFIBARERB -

PREASEZERERATF



w

60

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Any failure by the PRC Contractual Entities or their respective
shareholders to perform their obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements with them would have a material
adverse effect on our business and financial conditions.

If a PRC Contractual Entity or its shareholders fail to perform
their obligations under the Contractual Arrangements, we
may have to incur substantial costs and resources to enforce
our rights under the contracts, and rely on legal remedies
under PRC law, including seeking specific performance
or injunctive relief and claiming damages, which may not
be effective. For example, if the shareholders of a PRC
Contractual Entity were to refuse to transfer their equity
interest in such Contractual Entity to us or our designee
when we exercise the call option pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements, or if they were otherwise to act in bad faith
toward us, then we may have to take legal actions to compel
them to perform their contractual obligations.

We conduct a substantial portion of our business operations
in the PRC through the PRC Contractual Entities by way
of the Contractual Arrangements, but certain of the terms
of the Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC laws.

All of these Contractual Arrangements are governed by
PRC laws and provide for the resolution of disputes through
arbitration in China. Accordingly, these contracts would
be interpreted in accordance with PRC laws and any
disputes would be resolved in accordance with PRC legal
procedures. The legal system in China is not as developed
as in other jurisdictions. As a result, uncertainties in the
PRC legal system could limit our ability to enforce these
contractual arrangements. Under PRC law, rulings by
arbitrators are final, parties cannot appeal the arbitration
results in courts, and the prevailing parties may only enforce
the arbitration awards in PRC courts through arbitration
award recognition proceedings, which would incur
additional expenses and delay. In the event we are unable
to enforce these contractual arrangements, we may not be
able to exert effective control over our the PRC Contractual
Entities, and our ability to conduct our business may be
negatively affected.
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The Contractual Arrangements contain provisions to the
effect that the arbitral body may award remedies over
the shares and/or assets of the PRC Contractual Entities,
injunctive relief and/or winding up of the PRC Contractual
Entities. These agreements also contain provisions to the
effect that courts of competent jurisdictions are empowered
to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal. However, under
PRC laws, these terms may not be enforceable. Under
PRC laws, an arbitral body does not have the power to
grant directly injunctive relief or to issue a provisional or final
liquidation order for the purpose of protecting assets of or
equity interests in the PRC Contractual Entities in case of
disputes. In addition, interim remedies or enforcement order
granted by overseas courts such as Hong Kong and the
Cayman Islands may not be recognisable or enforceable in
China. Therefore, in the event of breach of any agreements
constituting the Contractual Arrangements by the PRC
Contractual Entities and the Relevant Shareholders, and if
we are unable to enforce the Contractual Arrangements,
we may not be able to exert effective control over the PRC
Contractual Entities, which could materially and adversely
affect our ability to conduct our business.

Material Change

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, there
is no material change in the Contractual Arrangements and/
or the circumstances under which they were adopted.

Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any
of the Contractual Arrangement or failure to unwind when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out
below which will be regarded as continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules. Unless otherwise
defined, capitalised terms below has the same meanings as
those defined in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the section headed “Contractual
Arrangement” in this report, the business operations
of the PRC Contractual Entities constitute a business
prohibited to foreign investment in the PRC, therefore, the
Company cannot directly acquire equity interests in the PRC
Contractual Entities. As a result, the Group has entered
into Contractual Arrangement to exercise and maintain
control over the operations of the PRC Contractual Entities,
obtain their entire economic benefits and prevent leakage
of the assets and values of the PRC Contractual Entities
to their shareholders in the PRC. Under the Contractual
Arrangements, the Group supervises and controls the
business operations of the PRC Contractual Entities and
derives economic benefit from the PRC Contractual Entities
through New Talent Media.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The transactions under the Contractual Arrangements
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules and are subject
to the requirements of reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 20 of the

RIBAIZER ETWRA - SOLHE TN ZERARAN
FERERS RN EHRBETRIER EMARAE -+
BETHERR  AEMBLRRIERTE -

GEM Listing Rules following the Listing.

The table below sets forth the connected persons of the
Company involved in the Contractual Arrangements and the

nature of their connection with the Group:

Name of connected person

BEALHS

el

TREJNEHNLHMPSNARBIEAL REEAREER

BHIEE -

Connected relationship

Mr. Yang
BRE

Ms. Mu
Sy oqun

PRC Contractual Entities
FEAENER

Management Shareholders of Emphasis Media

ERHSKMHEERR

Beijing New Element Consulting Co. Ltd.
(“New Element”)
bR EHBRABERAB([FHTED
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Mr. Yang is the Controlling Shareholder of the Group and is therefore
our connected person pursuant to Rule 20.06 of the GEM Listing Rules.
B R ERBRMIRERAR - EURRAIZR E AR A5 20.06 5§ A3
BREAL o

Ms. Mu is the Controlling Shareholder of the Group and is therefore our
connected person pursuant to Rule 20.06 of the GEM Listing Rules.
2T RBEFIRERAR - EURIRAI 3R E 4R A5 20.06 5 A A
HBEAL -

Each of the PRC Contractual Entities is indirectly controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Group and is therefore an associate of
the controlling shareholders and the connected person of the Group,
among other factors, pursuant to Rule 20.10 of the GEM Listing Rules.
EHPEENERBHERREEES - Ei R PIEERBRRREEA
RMARBRIZER EiRAIE 2010 5% (K857 HMHBEEAL -

The Management Shareholders of Emphasis Media are shareholders of
Emphasis Media and the Company, and directors of New Talent Media.
Therefore the Management Shareholders of Emphasis Media are the
connected persons under the GEM Listing Rules.
BRORNEERRBERINR RARRINRRRBER UL ERKES -
Hit - MREKEEERRBBPINEIER EHRAETHBEAL -

New Element is owned as to 60% by Mr. Yang and 40% by Ms. Mu
respectively, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Yang and Ms. Mu,
the Controlling Shareholders and the connected person of the Group,
among other factors, pursuant to Rule 20.10 of the GEM Listing Rules.
MO TERGREREL LD BITER60% K 40% © FHitt (A H 1) R
BIZEMR ERAIE 201016 - AEFIERIRERSEEREL THHE
ARFFIHBEAL -
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
PRC Contractual Entities’ financial results are consolidated
into the Company’s consolidated financial statements as
if they were wholly-owned subsidiaries and the flow of
economic benefits from their business to the Company,
places the Group in a special position in relation to the
connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements technically constitute continuing connected
transactions for the purposes of Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Directors consider that it would be
unduly burdensome and impracticable and would impose
unnecessary administrative costs on us to be subject to
strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of these
continuing connected transactions. Accordingly, the
Company has, pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, applied
to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange
has granted, a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirements relating to these continuing
connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
In addition, the Directors confirm that the Company has
complied and will continue to comply with the applicable
provisions under the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the services
provided by New Talent Media under Contractual
Arrangements to the PRC Contractual Entities (including
technical and management consulting services and other
technology and consultancy services requested by each of
the PRC Contractual Entities from time to time to the extent
permitted under PRC laws) amounted to an aggregate of
approximately RMB16.6 million.

Pursuant to Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board
engaged BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has reported
the results and their work to the Board, confirming that
the transaction has received the approval of the Directors,
has been entered into in accordance with the relevant
Contractual Arrangements and that no dividends or other
distributions has been made by PRC Contractual Entities to
its shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
Contractual Arrangements, the above continuing connected
transactions and the report of the auditor. In the opinion of
the independent non-executive directors:

(i) the continuing connected transactions carried out
during the year are in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group and have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements so that the revenue
generated by PRC Contractual Entities and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly
retained by the Group;

(i) the continuing connected transactions were entered
into either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b)
where there is no available comparison, on terms that
are no less favourable to the Group than terms to or
from independent third parties;

(i) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
PRC Contractual Entities to its shareholders; and

(iv) any new Contractual Arrangements entered into,
renewed or reproduced between PRC Contractual
Entities and the Company during the relevant financial
period are fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far
as the Company are concerned and in the interests of
our shareholders as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction
which needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in
accordance with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company,
Altus Capital Limited, as at the date of this report, save
for the compliance adviser agreement dated 4 November
2015 entered into between the Company and Altus
Capital Limited, neither Altus Capital Limited, its directors,
employees and close associates had any interest in relation
to the Group which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Philip Jian Yang

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 24 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CREATIVE CHINA
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Creative China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
73 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matter
FARETEH

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RO ET AR EARENSE

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment assessment

Refer to notes 18 and 19 in the consolidated financial
statements.
BB E M IEHRRMTE18 K19 ¢

The Group has goodwill of RMB31,262,000 and intangible
assets of RMB1,776,000 respectively relating to the event
organisation, mobile live broadcasting and entertainment
contents on demand system segment.
EXEFMEHEN BHEENRRENDTNERBE RS
DR E N B EED B/ AR 31,262,000 TR AR
1,776,000 7T °

In the annual impairment review, management has
concluded that there is no impairment in respect of the
goodwill and intangible assets. This conclusion was
based on a value in use model that required significant
management judgment with respect to the discount rate
and underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue
growth.

RERZREENT  EERERR/RLEFMHMENETLEE
BVRE « ZAEm DA REEREARER  ZRABKE
BEMTREMEARSRE (LEERRKARIER) (L
BRI

BEREREERETE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

BB BEEEREMMENEFIZEF 21

— Assessing the valuation methodology;

-  FHMEREDE

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and

industry; and
— BRERMNEBRITENZREARBRNSIEMLRE
&R - &

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as latest financial forecasts approved by the
management and considering the reasonableness of
these forecasts.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR S

Accounting for business combination

There is risk that the acquisition accounting for the two
acquisitions made in the year, as set out in note 33, has
not been correctly applied. Specifically, there is a risk that
incorrect judgment is made which results in the inaccurate
allocation of value to acquired intangibles.

WA EE 3 PEL - FAVEH ARIBIIB W G AFER
b - WRIEHEER - LHEE FETEFEEXKSEZD
WEEET, & EEE N ERNER -

We also consider the valuation of contingent consideration

to be arisk, given the judgment involved.

NS REHE - HATTRRIARENEEFERR
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We have challenged the key assumptions made by

management in accounting for the acquisitions including:

ﬁﬁaﬁ BENUEBEENGDETERARRRIED
CBAE

- A review of the sales and purchase agreements to
determine whether the appropriate intangible assets
have been identified and that no unusual terms exist
that have not been accounted for;

- BHEEWHZ UEBET=A#MNIcENETLEE

BIFETEARSE TR

— Testing the valuation and accounting for consideration
payable. Testing contingent consideration calculations,
assessing whether any consideration may actually
represent post-acquisition remuneration and tracing
payments made to bank statements;

- AHEMNRENEERGE - AFAKAKET
B AEEREEAREER ERRKBR KL
A #1741 AR B8 4 ) O BR MBS K

- The identification and fair valuation of the assets and
liabilities the Group acquired including any fair value
adjustments; and

— BEEMKBEERABBENHEFIRATHE  B5F
EERAERE &

- Valuation assumption such as discount, tax and
royalty rates by reviewing assumptions used in
such calculations and recalculating using external

evidence.
= %ﬂ%@ﬁ%u$¢m% % R RN R B AT
HHEERR - fIRE  HERREE -



‘"--...II.I.I---I......

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR S

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man
Practicing Certificate no. P05309

Hong Kong, 24 February 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
SmETHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARET T ARBTIT
Turnover R 7 78,435 72,596
Direct costs BEERA (67,430) (39,568)
Gross profit EAH 11,005 33,028
Other revenue EH A 8 2,563 1,683
Other gains and losses H b Y5 M B 1E 9 5,257 356
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SR AR (13,907) (3,293)
Listing expenses EWRAX = (10,430)
Administrative expenses TR (27,155) (17,058)
(Loss)/profit from operations i (B18), i F (22,237) 4,286
Finance costs B TR AR 14 (141) (185)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSBIRT (B18) =5 10 (22,378) 4,101
Income tax credit/(expense) Fiissife, (Ax) 15 4,669 (3,784)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FR(EBBR) w55k
(loss)/income for the year 2m (FY) WAEEE (17,709) 317
Attributable to: KL :
Owners of the Company KABEB A (16,138) 528
Non-controlling interests eI (1,571) 211)
(17,709) 317
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (E8) BR 16
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HAREE(ARES) (1.3430) 0.0609

PREASZERERAT —E-AFEEHRE 73



EEEEIS

74

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R
as at 31 December 2016
R-ZB—R"FE+=A=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-REF —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARET T AREFIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MR E 17 10,244 9,170
Goodwill R 18 31,262 &),5619
Intangible assets | AE 19 1,776 2,664
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WHEYISE - RS TRk
plant and equipment Z TERFIR 238 238
Deferred tax assets RIEFIIAE 2= 24 6,298 =
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 49,818 15,627
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E bW IE 20 74,579 25155
Amounts due from non-controlling interests ~ FEMFEIRRR 2SR IE 31(b) 441 -
Cash and cash equivalents R RReEEY 43,349 109,631
Total current assets REBEEHAE 118,369 134,786
Total assets EEAE 168,187 150,413
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables 2 S I8 21 1,712 3,122
Other payables H At FERTFRIE 22 14,983 14,928
Current tax liabilities BNEATRIE B 1R 3,771 3,151
Contingent consideration payables JER s ARE 23 3,739 =
Total current liabilities REEEHEE 24,205 21,201
Net current assets REEEFE 94,164 113,585
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEME 143,982 129,212
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables HAth fETFRIE 22 - 585
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIE AR 24 444 666
Contingent consideration payables BRI ARE 23 4,919 =
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEELRE 5,363 1,251
Total liabilities =Rt it 29,568 22,452
NET ASSETS EEFE 138,619 127,961
Capital and reserves BARRHE
Share capital i 25 9,884 9,821
Reserves e 119,053 117,601
Equity attributable to owners RAREEA
of the Company FE(R R 128,937 127,422
Non-controlling interests IRt 26 9,682 539
TOTAL EQUITY R 138,619 127,961
On behalf of the board of directors REESZS

Philip Jian Yang
Bl

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

Yang Shiyuan
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2016

HE=Z-AE+-A=t+-BLEE
Reserves
it
(Accumulated Equity
losses)/ attributable to Non-
Share Share Other Merger Retained the ownersof  controlling
capital premium reserve reserve earnings  the Company interests Total
(ZitEB),/ HAREEA
A RORE  RtEE  GHEE  RERA  EEER  FERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR ARETT ARETT AREBTn ARETT ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%
— AP = 1574 5362 9,300 747 23,483 - 23,483
Capitalinfection from non-controling K& —FEKEAR
interests of a subsidiary #Wﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé - - - - - - 750 750
Issue of ordinary shares (note 250 E{TERR (MzE25(0) 1 15,814 - - - 15,815 - 15,815
Capitalisation isse of shares ENETRG
(note 25(c) (B 25(c) 7351 (7.351) - - - - - -
Issue of shares under placing RERERRN
(note 25(d) (P 25(d)) 2469 93,833 - - - 96,302 - 96,302
Share issue expenses OEBI - (8,706) - - - (8,706) - (8,706)
Proft and total comprehensive EngfIR2ENALE
income for the year - - - - 528 528 (211) 317
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+A
=T—RrEs 9,621 95,164 5,362 9,300 7,775 127,422 539 27,91
Issue of shares for payment of BxIRBEETRD
servioes fee (note 29) (Fizk29) 63 17,149 = - = 17212 - 212
Acquision of subsiciaries (note 33 ACRMEAE (Hfz£33) - - - - - - 107 0714
Disposal of partalinterest in a subsidiary Hi&—FHBARS
without loss of control BRMAKXEEHE - - - = 441 441 = 441
Loss and total comprehensive EREER
lss forthe year 2ERREE - - - - {61 [61%®  (15T) (7709
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZZ—E
TZA=T-RfeEs 9,884 112,318 5362 9,300 792 128937 9,682 138,619
. Represents amount less than RMB1,000 N 1EL LR REE 1,000
Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in note 27. REEE RRREENWE27 °
FERIZZERERA R E—REFEHRE 75
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘l-ﬁ Eﬁ:%/)lbiﬂj—%

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—NE —T—AhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities ETHELBEERE
(Loss) / profit before income tax ﬁ?ﬁﬁ SEAT(&BER),S7F (22,378) 4,101
Adjustments for: T
Interest income FEUA (95) (36)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME « BE KR
plant and equipment BGIEE 5) (47)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — KT B A Rl AT Es = (309)
Effective rent recognised ERAERES 582 529
Finance costs BT RN 141 185
Depreciation of property, M HE REETE
plant and equipment 2,679 2,430
Change in fair value of FAREBEAREER
contingent consideration (5,252) -
Amortisation of intangible assets AR 888 888
Operating (loss) / profit before EEENEEF 2
working capital changes i (B18),/ % F (23,440) 7,741
Increase in trade and other receivables féf%&/ﬁ\ﬂﬂfﬁ WKERIEE N (35,378) (21,363)
Decrease in amounts due from shareholders — FEUA% 5 71385 - 325
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B 5 EMNFECRD), /1 m (1,410) 1,703
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H b e~ FRIE ( /)19 ),/ 0 (2,772) 2,035
Decrease in amount due to FE — R & R R IE R A
a related company - (420)
Cash used in operations KEMARS (63,000) (9,979)
Income taxes paid EASETIEHL (203) (3,322)
Net cash used in operating activities KETEB AR S F 5 (63,203) (13,301)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHELEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE Y% - BE KRB (2,792) (608)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE
plant and equipment KRBTSR 25 =
Payment of acquisition of subsidiaries W R BT BB A RIS 3R (407) —
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHHEAR] - 396
Interest received B UHLE 95 36
Net cash used in investing activities HEREFTAE 55 (3,079) (176)

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN ==
mEBEERER
for the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_Z- X Et+-A=t—HIEE

2016 2015
—E-AEF —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities BMETBELRESRE
Proceeds from issue of shares under placing R EEL & 21T D & A A5 508 - 96,302
Issue of ordinary shares BT E B - 15,815
Share issue expenses B EITHAEZ - (8,706)
Loan repayment to a shareholder B —BREER - (394)
Capital injection from non-controlling RE B A R
interests of a subsidiary EmIE - 750
Repayment of finance lease obligations EER AR S AR - (340)
Net cash generated from financing activites ~— V& EENE AR &/F58 - 103,427
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReMREEEY
and cash equivalents CR),/HEhnFsa (66,282) 89,950
Cash and cash equivalents REVNRE RIREZEY
at beginning of year 109,631 19,681
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERWRE REAE
of year — represented by cash EZEY—ERRES
and bank deposits only RARITIF K 43,349 109,631
FERIZZERERA R E-—REFERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

s

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
REORGANISATION

Creative China Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 November 2013. The address
of its registered office is at the offices of Codan
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business
is located at Building C9-A, Universal Creative Park,
9 Jiuxiangiao North Road, Chaoyang District, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18
November 2015.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding while its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of program production services,
event organisation services, mobile live broadcasting
services and entertainment contents on demand
system services in the PRC. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred as the “Group”
hereafter.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2016

NEAEMREA

PEEEERAERAR(ARF D DR-ZE—=
F+—A—BERSHESTMKIHNER AT - &
=gt & Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands °
HEZHEBa i 0P E AR TR ([ E bR
S R ENFE I 9 SR 1B mBIRR BIRTE COEARE -

ARAROR=B—HF+— AT \BEEEHE
R 5 Fi AR A (2P ) ISR (T BI5HR ) £ -

ARBEBARDR/REZER  MEMBAREZK
ST BEIRMHE B RUERE  EBERRT - BH
BERRBMREARNEHBERGRSE - ARER
HIB AR N Xt m [AsE ] -

RAEBMBHREER (FBHBHREER])

(a) IREIHT BT EEMBHREEN R
—XE—A—BEN

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of
and HKAS 38 Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and
Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in

Separate Financial
Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2016 (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities:
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Applying the
Consolidation
Exception
Regulatory Deferral
Accounts
Accounting for
Acquisitions of
Interests in
Joint Operations

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage
entities to use judgment in the application
of HKAS 1 when considering the layout and
content of their financial statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s
share of other comprehensive income from
equity accounted interests in associates and
joint ventures is split between those items that
will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss,
and presented in aggregate as a single line
item within those two groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—AE+-A=+—HLEE

2. BRRBERUBREER(HFBUBHREER )

(&)

(a)

RN RIET BB BRELEN—HN=F
—ANF-A-BER(E)
BRUBHREERNE 105 - &‘E% EREaA
% BRI RS 2R ZBISMER
F12RREBGER
285];%2{%:
BEMBMERANE 145 EHBLTRS

BEUBHREENE 1S KBS EEKER
ZIER] ZEEHA

BERETTERIE A5 ZET —KETE

ZEEF R RE—TREEREZ BV HRE
M BEAREERBE S ERIE 15RE
150 3 1 -

BETEEEREBHERBEQATARSEREL
BAREMEEAEmRESTABE TS
EMOERBREZIAB - WRZMEARIA K

F{ERE—TRR Z5 -

RMZFETHRENHRREYE -
HEAISEZERERAR T RFFERSE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

BRI M RE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the
use of a revenue-based depreciation method
for items of property, plant and equipment.
The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based
on revenue is not appropriate for intangible
assets. This presumption can be rebutted if
either the intangible asset is expressed as
a measure of revenue or revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated. The
amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Group has not previously used revenue-based
depreciation methods.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 -
Agriculture: Bearer Plants

The amendments define bearer plants and
require biological assets that meet the definition
to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16.
The agricultural produce of bearer plants
remains within the scope of HKAS 41. The
amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Group has no bearer plants.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method
in Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
in its separate financial statements. The
amendments are applied retrospectively in
accordance with HKAS 8.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Company has not elected to apply the equity
method in its separate financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 - Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption
from preparing consolidated financial
statements for an intermediate parent entity is
available to a subsidiary of an investment entity
(including investment entities that account
for their subsidiaries at fair value rather than
consolidating them). An investment entity
parent will consolidate a subsidiary only when
the subsidiary is not itself an investment entity
and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to provide
services that relate to the investment entity’s
investment activities. A non-investment entity
applying the equity method to an associate
or joint venture that is an investment entity
may retain the fair value measurements
that associate or joint venture used for its
subsidiaries. An investment entity that prepares
financial statements in which all its subsidiaries
are measured at fair value through profit or
loss should provide the disclosures related to
investment entities as required by HKFRS 12.
The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Company is neither an intermediate parent
entity nor an investment entity.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—AE+-A=+—HLEE

RAEBMBHREER ((FBHBHREER])

(&)

(a)

RFE]RIET BRI BEREERN—R =%
—ANF-A-BER(E)

EBGEAE27 F 2B - BIUMKREKZ
Rt

ZEE uT/Lﬁ%‘-ﬁ’%ﬁ:’i&ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ%
HAEERHEBAR A**ﬁ%&ﬂé‘%%‘@TZ
TﬁiéfLTTEnJrJ‘gIE ZEETTBRERSS
AERIZE 8B HMER ©

RNZE BT TS HR SN BRREETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

BRI ML

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECE—AF+=-A=t+—-HLFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2016 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply
the relevant principles of HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations when it acquires an interest in
a joint operation that constitutes a business
as defined in that standard. The principles of
HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation
of a joint operation if an existing business as
defined in that standard is contributed by at
least one of the parties. The amendment are
applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no
impact on these financial statements as the
Group has not acquired or formed a joint
operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for
Unrealised Lossess'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-Based Payment
Transactions?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
(Clarification of
HKFRS15)?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of

and HKAS 28 Assets between an

Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

N The amendments were originally intended to

be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—"F+T-A=1T—-RALFE

RAEBMBHREER ((FBHBHREER])
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X552
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BAMREERIE 155 BEFE&HZ
g5 2
BB RELRNE 155 28] FEFAHZKE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

BRI M RE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional
disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the
necessary considerations, including how to
account for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured of fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on
the accounting for the effects of vesting and
non-vesting conditions on the measurement
of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a
net settlement feature for withholding tax
obligations; and a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

2.

RAEBMBHREER ((FBHBHREER])
(&)

(b) EEMEEKRERZHET/RETEBUBRE

R ()

BB EAE TR BT IRETE

ZEERISIARMKE - SESHBHRERZA

PR ERAEDREER AR -

BB ENF 122 BT AR BER

RIELEBIREE

ZEEFEEREERBEEERBNERE T
VENEE  BRERAAEFENEHTA

FEREREIETR IR & EE X IR ARR ©

ERMBRERAE 2R BT —URDAE

BARXZNDERAE

SZEERT AR ERB I FRBIRITE AR 4
BB RERZ XNFTENSFREE : FAH
METREFRAETERENARD/ER X
MRS URRZEFHBESEEEE SEn
REE 2 AR A ER 2 SRR R AR R &

T



“—--......----.....

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial
assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have
contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at FVTOCI if
the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that
are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at
FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss
impairment model for all financial assets not
measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss
model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

RAEBMBHREER ((FBHBHREER])

(&)

(b)

BAEME M RERZ I BETEEBRBER
HER ()

BRMBEREENFIOR -—SMITA
BEMBEREEANFEIFIESRHEEN AR
AENHRE BEKRABEEEMENR
WEA BB RAER TR CGRBEAE) A
RAELRSRNENIEREERINAES R
AEEXREHENEB TE(AORERER
A - — IR KA E - MR ERED
BEANBENARAEREREVBRESRAREE
TREE  AIFfAENRSREERIHNER
TRUEAAEFAREBEAKEE - B
ARV HERER L T ARG EE - AIRA
REFAEMEEKSFTELFFEEENR
ATE - FrAEMERIEAT AR QA ER
A -

ERP B mMEEREIRMIL IR ERT A
BENMAESREEMAF N RBABBRER
X (BRRBB S ERFE RN ELHER
) ARFH —REFEETRE - UEREER
MBBRAEFRRERAREREE -

BB HMEERESREREB G ERE
395RIA MR B EMEER - DENMFERTE
HEEERAABFABENESBAERN - M
BECEERREIFNAAEEDSERE
2 ERAER - BRIFGELSIERNGFTEER
R RIERER © tHN - BAEMBREERE
FRBBAEGTERERR U EAEMEE
REBABMHRE

HEAISEZERERAR

<



EEEEIS

J—

86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle
of the framework is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: ldentify the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to
each performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on
particular revenue related topics that may
change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly
enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with customers (Clarification to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus
agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of
use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases
differently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
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2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 -
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments clarify the extent of gains
or losses to be recognised when an entity
sells or contributes assets to its associate or
joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in
full, conversely when the transaction involves
assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will
result in substantial changes to the Group’s
accounting policies and financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the listing of securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB?”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwiill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between () the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(@)

Business combination and basis of

consolidation (continued)
Note:

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiary are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Subsidiaries arising from a series of
contract agreements signed on 18 May
2015 (the “Contractual Arrangements”)

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the company,
New Talent Media Company Limited
(“New Talent Media”), has entered into
the Contractual Arrangements with Beijing
Emphasis Media Co., Ltd.*, Beijing New Image
Media Co., Ltd.*, Starry Knight Entertainment
Co., Ltd.*, Beijing Joy Star Production Co.,
Ltd.* and Beijing Great Wise Media Co., Ltd.”
(collectively defined as “PRC Contractual
Entities”) and their respective equity holders,
which enable New Talent Media and the Group
to:
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Subsidiaries (continued) (b) HMEBAT (HE)

AR=Z2-RFHEATNBEREN-RIIEH
ZHTEHNRS) MEENHME LR (F)

Subsidiaries arising from a series of
contract agreements signed on 18 May
2015 (the “Contractual Arrangements”)

(continued)

exercise effective financial and
operational control over PRC Contractual
Entities;

exercise equity holders’ voting rights of
the PRC Contractual Entities;

receive substantially all of the economic
interest returns generated by the PRC
Contractual Entities in consideration
for the business support, technical and
consulting services provided by New
Talent Media, at New Talent Media’s
discretion;

obtain an irrevocable and exclusive
right with an initial period of 10 years
to purchase the entire equity interest
in the PRC Contractual Entities from
the respective equity holders. The right
automatically renews upon expiry until
New Talent Media specifies a renewal
term;

obtain a pledge over the entire equity
interest of the PRC Contractual Entities
from their respective equity holders
as collateral security for all of the PRC
Contractual Entities’ payments due
to New Talent Media and to secure
performance of PRC Contractual Entities’
obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements.

TEHTEAOVERNERMBERES
PRI

TR BEA OB RBEERSE ANKRERE

ERXEERBRRTEANERE
ERAB D RN 2 0 5 - 1ERRE X
EERREEMNRE R - Bl kAR
HBHIRE

REREERERBEABETEANER
2 ERBE M N R B R EN - 1A
FHRTF - AN N ERE 5 8 E
Hl - RSB HEEERTFRER
BRI

EEEBEREAHTEGONERER
BENER (FATEAGNERBENE
8L B LA BT A BOR B I 1 3 HE OR
FEASNERBITANRHETZERE -

HEAISEZERERAR



EEEEIS

J—

94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

BRI M RE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries arising from a series of
contract agreements signed on 18 May
2015 (the “Contractual Arrangements”)
(continued)

The Group does not have any equity interest
in PRC Contractual Entities. However, as a
result of the Contractual Arrangements, the
Group has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the PRC Contractual Entities
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the PRC Contractual
Entities and is considered to control the
PRC Contractual Entities. Consequently, the
Company regards the PRC Contractual Entities
as the indirect subsidiaries under HKFRSs. The
Group has included the financial positions and
results of the PRC Contractual Entities in the
consolidated financial statements during the
years. Please refer to note 3 for details of the
related presentation basis.

Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements may
not be as effective as direct legal ownership
in providing the Group with direct control over
the PRC Contractual Entities and uncertainties
presented by the PRC legal system could
impede the Group’s beneficiary rights of
the results, assets and liabilities of the PRC
Contractual Entities. The Group believes
that the Contractual Arrangements among
New Talent Media, the PRC Contractual
Entities and their respective equity holders
are in compliance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations and are legally enforceable.

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
SO as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful
lives are as follows:

Leasehold Over the remaining
improvements lives of the leases

but not exceeding
10 years

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment  3-5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives
on the same basis as owned assets, or where
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the business combination
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, if any.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (“CGUS”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

U]

Intangible assets

An intangible asset acquired separately is
recognised initially at cost. Intangible asset
with indefinite useful life carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible asset identified on business
combination are capitalised at fair value at
the date of acquisition and are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Customer
relationships is amortised on a straight-
line basis from the date of acquisition over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years. The
amortisation is charged to profit or loss.
Both the estimated useful lives and method
of amortisation are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, annually.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease
payments are analysed between capital and
interest. The interest element is charged to
profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital
element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

4. EX

(e)

)

e R AR

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALEFE

SETBER ()

BIEE
BEREANELEEVTRKARER - AER
A A 4 By BT B EE IR AR REHRUE
BRI -

XA P BB ER R B B
REBFTE AR MR RT3 85 R T REt
WERBEYIRE - FPEEBWE R HRER
AAERF s FARREHEE - BT AR
@ o AETAERFHREEEEFREIENR
FE (LER) -

R

NG R E R 2 BB R & B H
BREABEAZHOGYBRBERD - I8
HAiBOEN EREEHEL -

FEBMEREBEA

RREHERA CEEINFE AR EK(fH
PR EEREENRZRERRASEE -
EREAEZI[ARE - HENFKREARRF
BZEHEE AT - MEBINEEHRR BB
k% - FAETASEN SR EERERHAE
FELLP] - BAE S BIA] BIERIB AR HBAAZ
BREE o

REBZEEHOEN S RBNEREREN
RIBFER - FTERZ HeBRRBERERR
HEFX AR BRED

HEAISEZERERAT



|lIIIIllllllII-IIIIIIIlIIIIII--"—'

J—

98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments

(i)

(i1)

Financial assets
All the financial assets of the Group are
classified as loans and receivables.

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to
customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset.

Loans and receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets
The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor’s financial
difficulty; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

(continued)

o it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss and directly reduces the
carrying amount of financial asset when
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

All the financial liabilities of the Group
are classified as financial liabilities at
amortised cost. Financial liabilities at
amortised cost are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost,
including trade payables, other payables,
amount due to a related company,
amount due to a director, loan from
a shareholder and finance lease
obligations, are subsequently measure
at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the periods. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life
of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial
asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued
are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured,
the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is presented
net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts, if any.

The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below.

(@) Program production and related

services

The Group uses the percentage of
completion method to determine the
appropriate amount of revenue to
recognise in a given period. The stage
of completion is measured by reference
to the contract costs incurred up to the
balance sheet date as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract.
Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract
are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.
They are presented as work in progress,
prepayments or other assets (if any),
depending on their nature.

Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments (if any) are included in
contract revenue to the extent that would
have been agreed with the customer and
are capable of being reliably measured.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(@)

(b)

Program production and related
services (continued)

Contract costs are recognised as
expenses as they are incurred and
contract revenue, being costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) are recognised progressively
over the period of the contract. When
the outcome of a contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract
revenue is recognised with profits. When
the outcome of the contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contact
revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

The Group presents as an asset, if the
gross amount due from customers for
contract work for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings. Progress billings not yet
paid by customers are included within
‘trade and other receivables’.

The Group presents as a liability if the
gross amount due to customers for
contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress bilings exceed costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses).

Event organisation and related
services

Revenue from event organisation and
related services is recognised at the
conclusion of the events, which is the
point in time when all service has been
provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Revenue recognition (continued)

()

Mobile live broadcasting and related

services

The Group operates self-developed live
broadcasting platform. The Group’s
platform is free to visit and watch.
Everyone is free to join the platform as
a broadcaster. Visitors can purchase
credits which are virtual currency for
acquisition of in-platform virtual items.
Visitors can show their support to live
broadcasters by transferring/gifting the
ownership of in-platform virtual items
to broadcasters. Broadcasters can sell
those in-platform virtual items to the
Group at a pre-determined discounted
price or transferring/gifting those virtual
items to another broadcaster.

Upon the sales of credits or in-platform
virtual items, the Group typically has an
implied obligation to provide the services
which enable the credits or in-platform
virtual items to be displayed, used or
converted into other in-platform virtual
currencies/items in the platform. As a
result, the proceeds received from sales
of credits or in-platform virtual items are
initially recorded as receipt in advance in
current liabilities. The attributable portion
of the receipt in advance relating to
values of the credits consumed and in-
platform virtual items converted are able
to reliably estimate and are immediately
or ratably recognised as revenue only
when broadcasters sell back those in-
platform virtual items to the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Entertainment On Demand System

and related services

The Group recognises Entertainment On
Demand System and related services as
subscription-based and usage-based.
Subscription revenue is recognised on
a proportionate basis over the life of the
subscription and the latter is recognised at
the time of play.

(e) Advertising income
Advertising income is recognised when all
service has been provided.

(f) Interestincome
Interest income is accrued on a time
basis on the principal outstanding at the
applicable interest rate.

Income tax
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realized or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Income tax (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties
at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)]

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it/
they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)]

Foreign currency (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense
items of foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’
separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative exchange differences recognised
in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on an
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the foreign exchange reserve.

4. EX

)]

e IR HRAR ML

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

SETBER ()

SN ()

REFRERBE  BINRFZBWARFRXER TS
REEFHERBELSAEEZFIFRER (A
ARE) - EHEZNBRARAKERES
FERBERT - BB SETR 2 A E X
BRAT - BINRBZABEERAERBRS
HIRZIRITERGE - fRELZ[E X Z8 (W0
B)IREMERKRARER  IREEAR
FEARRRSNEREE (RER DB R s (E
) Bt - RAKEER BB HHRRTH
BEERANEERE @SR 2 REFER
M RHEKRAMNEBRNER EXEHE
B BREEMEEPA - IRESEARETA
AR SEE S E B -

RHEEBINEBE  BZEGEELE A
RINERBEAER < RETENLZRE - TRHE
REH D BERED - (FRBmE —#60 -

WIEBINEBEE 2D WE AT B EERER
AAEABEERBIRBZEERAE I
RBERRERZEXRSHNE - AEL L
BEE 3¢, 22 BRI BE 3 (A R HERR) ©

HEAISEZERERAR



SIS

J—

108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=
e

AR R

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U]

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are
employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised
on the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Share-based payment

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value (excluding the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

Share-based payment (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are
measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case
they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the
entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service.

Impairment of non-financial assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° investment in a subsidiary; and
° Intangible assets — customer relationships.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which it is probable,
will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(p) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(@).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e R R
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—HLEE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., ERETBEE(#)
(CONTINUED)
(p) Related parties (continued) (p) FAERH(E)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if (b) HEATHEMIEHE  EEEAER
any of the following conditions apply: aEE: (5B)
(continued)
Close members of the family of a person are R ATHII BB EEERAIZEZAL
those family members who may be expected HEEAETEERNEERNZATEENS
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in FAREBKE @ B :
their dealings with the entity and include:
()  that person’s children and spouse or () RBALHTFRZEEBHRRERS
domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or (i) FRBATHRBIREHENTFLZ &
domestic partner; and
(i) dependents of that person or that (i) ZBATHZBALTHEBHRENE
person’s spouse or domestic partner. RZESFA -
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. BAEHHABRMGFTAPERZEEZRR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, RERAAER @ THRBEREFR  SEESTEHE
the managements are required to make judgments, AT TRt M RRGEE c BEH BB 2 REBEED
estimates and assumptions about the carrying ¥ijiﬁ Hat R - ZE Mt R EBEBREIIRER
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily AR RkEEzEMAZMEL - ERESFHEE
apparent from other sources. The estimates and F‘;IJEME;#%(% °

associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are KEl%—rit?fﬁfrﬂ?ﬁd‘&*@F‘WEP“VEﬁu:HE
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to et 2T T ME T (T B R (W (& pﬂ T
accounting estimates are recognised in the period ZHIE) © SR uTHEF'EJ&E&HﬂFEJﬁE (o EEI-A
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 20N HZEIR)

only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

(i)

(1)

Determination of functional currency
The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries. In determining the functional
currencies of the group entities, judgment
is required to determine the currency that
mainly influences sales prices for goods
and services and of the country whose
competitive forces and regulations mainly
determines the sales prices of its goods
and services. The functional currencies
of the group entities are determined
based on management’s assessment of
the economic environment in which the
entities operate and the entities’ process
of determining sales prices.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions
requires the Group to make judgments
on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions
in accordance with prevailing tax
regulations and makes tax provisions
accordingly. In addition, deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.
This requires significant judgment on the
tax treatments of certain transactions and
also assessment on the probability that
adequate future taxable profits will be
available for the deferred tax assets to be
recovered.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(iii)

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage of
completion method in accounting for
its revenue from fixed-price contracts
for program production and related
services. Use of the percentage of
completion method requires the Group’s
management to estimate the contract
costs incurred up to the balance sheet
date as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Because of the
nature of the activities undertaken in
program production and related services
contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group’s
management regularly reviews and make
judgments on revising the estimation of
both contract revenue and contract cost
in the budget prepared for each contract
as the contract progresses.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainties

@i

(1)

Impairment of receivables

The Group’s management reviews
receivables on a regular basis to
determine if any provision for impairment
is necessary. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its customers, past
settlement and industry practice and
current market conditions. Management
reassesses the impairment of receivables
at each reporting date.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment.
For the purposes of impairment
reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations primarily use cash flow
projections based on five year financial
budgets approved by management.
There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved in the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period
covered by the approved budgets.
Key assumptions include the expected
growth in revenues, timing of future
capital expenditures, growth rates and
selection of discount rates to reflect the
risks involved. Management prepares
the financial budgets reflecting actual
and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgment is
required to determine key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow projections
and changes to key assumptions can
significantly affect these cash flow
projections and therefore the results of
the impairment reviewed.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—"FT-A=T—-ALFE

EASEHE R AT RABERE 2 TZHRR (H)

CEIROLELEESE ede -2 9

(i)

(i)

P& W SRR R E
AREEEEEE R EUKIEAEE
HERERTDHHERE - AR
BEXPZEEESL BEAERTE
BOIARERTRME - ERER S
& A S A R YR IRRE

AERE
AEEBFAABERS B TR
B - BRERIME - BEAKRESER
TIRBERENGETZEE - £RE
METEETENAREEEMENT
FUBAEAENRSRERA - R
wEREREDRENRSREFRRS R
ETERRMME - TERREELEDN
BHIER RREARXWER  E&
RLEERRBBARRMMEE - 12
ERHERREFELREFRBETSER
AWM KRR - EERSRETRAAAR
RN 2HRIEBELHLE X2
BRRNE I A H I FRSRE FBREK
BEARE  AmMpEpERIHER

HEAISEZERERAT



w

J—

116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R IR R

)17 N =|

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—XF+-A=+—HLEE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group has four reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires
different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments:

- Program production and related services
(“Program Production”);

- Event organisation and related services (“Event
Organisation”);

- Mobile live broadcasting and related services
(“Mobile Live Broadcasting”);

- Entertainment contents on demand system and
related services (“Entertainment On Demand
System”).

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference
to prices charged to external parties for similar order.
Central revenue and expenses are not allocated to
the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ profit that is used by
the chief operating decision maker for assessment of
segment performance.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(@)

e R AR

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XRE+-A=+—HLEE

6. 2EEwmE(HA)

Business segments (@) XKD
The segment information provided to the Chief RAEWMOEME + MITHBREIRHEN D HE
Executive Officer for the reportable segments is BT
as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—AF+-A=1t—HLFE
Mobile Entertainment
Program Event Live  OnDemand
Production Organisation Broadcasting System Total
GEESE EBER BHEE REYEZRG @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARt AR¥Tn ARETr AR%Tn
Reportable segment revenue REMIZPZ
from external customers BEE G 49,254 29,018 120 43 78,435
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A2RDFEF/ (BR) 945 256 (12,077) (4,339) (15,215)
Interest income AMEBHA 18 13 1 1 3
Interest expense M EFR 14 - - - 141
Depreciation of property, % - BER
plant and equipment RETE 1,889 613 7 40 2,549
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEEH - 888 - - 888
Reportable segment assets IERNHEE 40,501 217,381 39,350 30,363 137,595
Additions to non-current assets (note) 3%@&?7‘3 (it 1,048 613 169 981 2,811
Reportable segment liabllties 2RAHHER 6,372 8,614 684 1,188 16,858
Note: Kzt -
Non-current assets include property, plant and FERBEECIEYE - BERE
equipment.
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_T—AF+t-A=1T—HILFE
Mobile  Entertainment
Program Event Live  OnDemand
Production Organisatiqrj Broadcasting System Total
FIEESE LI i BHER REFRZS S
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIOOO
ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETn AR%ETR
Reportable segment revenue REIBEP L
from external customers 2RA Pz 35,663 36,933 = - 72,596
Reportable segment profit eSO 5,565 9,329 - = 14,804
Interest income MEHA 19 12 - - 31
Interest expense MEFX 185 - - - 185
Depreciation of property, % - BER
plant and equipment SENE 1,914 516 - - 2,430
Amortisation of intangible assets B AEEH - 888 - - 888
Reportable segment assets Z2RNHEE 22,949 55,918 = - 78,867
Additions to non-current assets (note) ﬁméﬂéﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ/fﬁ‘f) 436 172 - - 608
Reportable segment liabilties E2ENHEE 10,145 9,805 - - 19,950
Note: Higt -

Non-current assets include property, plant and
equipment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+-A=+—-HLFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DML (M)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) HEFHIWE - B  EEREBEZHIER
revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment and AIZ2FDE R
consolidated revenue e W 78,435 72,596
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax B TS 8 5l (E518), %A
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 7] 2 ¥k &8 (E538) /% 5 (15,215) 14,894
Other revenue: HAKA -
— Interest income — R EIA 79 5
— Exchange gain — [ H W ms 2,396 1,460
— Sponsorship — &8 = 97
Other gains or losses: H Aok /E1E
— Change in fair value —IAREBAREE
of contingent consideration 5,252 -
Unallocated corporate expenses: 2Bl /A aFH X :
— Auditor’s remuneration — 1% A 2 B (802) (550)
— Directors’ emoluments —E5M<e (3,337) (134)
— Listing expenses — EWRAX = (10,430)
— Legal and professional fee —EEREXEER (2,703) (381)
— Salaries and other benefits —TEEER
for key management and THRAEZFE R
administration staffs HEH (4,039) (394)
— General operating expenses ——MREERT (3,115) (296)
— Others —HAth (894) (170)
Consolidated (loss)/profit BREFISEIRTAR S (B51R), A
before income tax (22,378) 4,101

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016




6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6.

(b)

(c)

v

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"F+-A=+—HLFE

Reconciliation of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (continued)

2 AR & ()

(b) TE2HDHUWE - BRAABBANER - EERE

Bz (&)

2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AIZMDHEE 137,595 78,867
Unallocated corporate assets: KD BEARIEE :
— Property, plant and equipment —#¥12 « HiE K& 855 -
— Cash and cash equivalents —BekReFEY 29,601 71,451
— Others —HA 136 95
Consolidated total assets LEBERE 168,187 150,413
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥ T ARETTT
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AIE2ROIEE 16,858 19,950
Unallocated corporate liabilities: RO BARIEE :
— Accruals —EstERA 4,052 2,502
— Contingent consideration — IS ARE
payables 8,658 =
Consolidated total liabilities e ABERR 29,568 22,452

Geographic information

All revenue from external customers are located
in the PRC. Geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the services
are provided. No geographical location of non-
current assets is presented as substantial non-
current assets are physically based in the PRC.

(c) HEER

KEIEEPHMAA YRR TR - BFH
BB TR R IR R B D - AR AR D I
MBEEMRTE - W R2FIIERBDEER

IR E -

HEAISEZERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEWHE (W)
(d) Information about major customers (d EEFTEEFHER
For the year ended 31 December 2016, BE-Z—RNE+-A=+—RHIFE X3
revenues from five customers (2015: two AEBF(ZE—HF  MEBEP)KEE B
customers) with whom transactions have BAEBREARREAI10% ° FFBEWT :

exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the
year. Details were as follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—ARF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBEFIT
Revenue from the customer: REBFEHHBA :
Customer I: =PI
— Program production and — &0 B SUERAERW A
related income 20,431 21,005
— Event organisation and —EEE P RAERA
related income - 2,391
20,431 23,396
Customer |I; ZEI
— Program production and — & B BUERMERBIA
related income 16,623 10,604
Customer lll: EEI
— Program production and — &0 B SUERAERW A
related income 11,604 N/Arote)
R R ()
Customer |V: Z2EIV:
— Program production and — &0 B SE BB A
related income 877 N/Alote)
3 R ()
— Event organisation and —EEEI RABREUA
related income 9,159 N/Arote)
3 ()
10,036 N/Arete)
3 R ()
Customer V: BBV :
— Event organisation and —EBEI RARKA
related income 8,283 N/Arete)
3 R ()
66,977 34,000
Note: KiaF -
The corresponding revenue in the year ended 31 BE—F—AF+_A=+—HIFE  FEFI IVEV
December 2015 for Customers I, IV and V did not B AEE Y I 7 B B AN B AR W 2 9 10% LA ©

contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TURNOVER

Turnover of the Group represents revenue generated
from (i) program production and related services,
(i) event organisation and related services, (iii)
mobile live broadcasting and related services and

e R AR

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALEFE

E S

AER B SR RS () B B RUE R ABRARRTS - (i) EEVEM
KABRAARTS - (i) BB E & MARR RS (iv) IRE B
ENRRG L EEREELS 2 HEKE - REAE
ERBREANS T BWEBRRIRENT

(iv) entertainment contents on demand system and
related services. The amounts of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the
year are as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RHF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETIT
Program production and £ B 24E R ABRAUA
related income:
— Service income — ARFE WA 49,254 35,625
— Advertising income —BEBA - 38
49,254 35,663
Event organisation and EBE N RAAERA
related income:
— Service income — BRAEUA 29,018 34,905
— Advertising income —BERA - 2,028
29,018 36,933
Mobile live broadcasting and IR IS ON
related income 120 -
Entertainment contents on demand IREANRNEIERS
system and related income KB A 43 =
78,435 72,596
FERIEZERERAE F-RFFEHE 121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

8. OTHER REVENUE 8. HflgA
2016 2015
—E—REF Sk
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Interest income from bank deposits IRITERZF B A 95 36
Exchange gain b 5 e 2,430 1,544
Sponsorship =] - 97
Sundry income T 38 6
2,563 1,683
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HfukhmkEE
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BE
plant and equipment MR 2 W 5 47
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —EIB AR 2 e - 309
Change in fair value of contingent ERSAREB AR BEES
consideration payables 5,252 -
5,257 356
10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFTEBLAT (E518),aF
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax is BRPETSELAT (B518), "R F &k
arrived at after charging:
Staff costs (note 11) BT (F7E11) 22,780 12,686
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2K B 577 B 802 1,600
Depreciation of property, plant and W% - WEMEETE
equipment (note 17 and (i) below) (B 5E 17 BT 2B 3E ) 2,679 2,430
Amortisation of intangible assets A S
(note 19) (FF5E19) 888 888
Note: /]/715}— .
() Depreciation charge of RMB1,085,000 (2015: () ERBTERIE A RN 1,085,000 (—E—FE : AR
RMB1,150,000) has been included in direct costs for the #1,150,0007T) EFFA B °
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT ERRMEE

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

STAFF COSTS 1. BIRA
2016 2015
—E-RF Sk
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Staff costs (including directors) ETHRA(BREESR) B
comprise:
Wages and salaries TERE® 16,707 9,549
Short-term non-monetary benefits EHIEE AR T 2,190 430
Social insurance and housing fund HERERIEREAES 3,883 2,707
22,780 12,686
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EZHE
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: WEZESEHMOT -
Year ended 31 December 2016: BE-SE—AFE+=-A=+—HILEE:
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits schemes Total
FER BIKEA
e HAt3EH HEER st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TRT AR®TR

Executive directors BTES

Mr. Philip Jian Yang (note (i below) Rl (X EE () - 1,101 - 1,101

Mr. Li Lin (note (i) below) RFR e A (T BftaE (i) - 403 27 430

Mr. Yang Shiyuan (note (ii) below) Wt S A (T SO EE (i) - 439 42 481

Mr. Sun Rui (note (ii) below) 75 A (T PftaE (i) - 368 34 402

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Ge Xuyu (note (iil) below) BT oA (T 3HisE (i) - 249 6 255

Mr. Wang Yong (note (iil) below) B LA (T SBT3 (i) - 206 - 206

Independent non-executive directors B FHTES

Mr. Li Fei (note (iv) below) AR AE (T (v) - 154 - 154

Mr. Law Kin Ho (note (iv) below) B EE (T W) - 154 - 154

Mr. Tan Song Kwang (note (iv) below) BRI S A (R SZHTEE (V) - 154 - 154
- 3,228 109 3,337
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z-—AE+-A=+—HLFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 12. EEHH (&)

Year ended 31 December 2015:

BE_Z-AF+-_A=+—HLEFE:

Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefit
Fees benefits schemes Total
ek RIER
ik Hipas AR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TrT AR®TT AR%Tn
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Philip Jian Yang (note (i) below) S 805 E (T XFEE () = 642 = 642
Mr. Li Lin (note (i) below) TR A (TP (i) - 105 5 110
Mr. Yang Shiyuan (note (i) below) BRI A (R (i) - 92 13 105
Mr. Sun Rui (note (ii) below) 7R s (TP aE (i) - 35 19 54
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Ge Xuyu (note (i) below) BRF5 A (3K i) - 23 = 23
Mr. Wang Yong (note (iii) below) EB A (T &k i) - 23 - 23
Independent non-executive directors BV FHTES
Mr. Li Fei (note (iv) below) TR (T XBEE (v) - 17 = 17
Mr. Law Kin Ho (note (iv) below) BRRSA (TR V) - 17 - 17
Mr. Tan Song Kwang (note (iv) below) BRI ST (TR SCHTEE (V) - 17 - 17
- 971 37 1,008
Note: Kiaz -
1) Mr. Philip Jian Yang is also the Chief Executive Officer of () b B 75 A I BRI A]RY T TIAR R,
the Company.
(i) Appointed as executive director on 21 April 2015. (i) REF—AFHA=—1—HEZFRHTESE -
(i) Appointed as non-executive director on 21 April 2015. (i) R-FB—AFNA -1+ —HEZFERHHTES -
(iv)  Appointed as independent non-executive director on 3 () R-FE—AFf+—A=HEZEEBE I TESE -
November 2015.

A S I £ 7 B 28 S HE T SRIBE A RER A (B 3K
WA EMAREEHRR - RBEE-T—RF+=
A=t BLFEYEFARHEEESRLER R
RERREIMHM(—T—1F : &) -

There were no amounts paid during the years to the
directors as compensation for loss of office, or as
inducement to join. There was no other arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2015: one) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2015: four) individual were as follows:

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

13. ZEBRSFMAL

AEBEEBBHFMALT WA (ZE—AF  —
£)AEATES - B HMEHRN X124
BED o HB— % (0 : ME) A+ 2 HH
e

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Wages and salaries (note) TERFS (M) 771 1,004
Social insurance and housing teRh EkEEAES
fund (note) (MI=E) - 76
Mandatory provident fund BHEATES 15 10
786 1,090
Their emoluments were within the following band: % 2 FEHR LA T4 5
2016 2015
—B-AE —E-hF
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to RMB1,000,000 == AR¥ 1,000,000 7T 1 4

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2015, wages and salaries
of RMB202,000 and social insurance and housing fund of
RMB59,000 were the emoluments of two executive directors

Hrat -

BE-T—AF+=-A="+—HIFE  ARK202,0005TH
TERFZIURA R 59,000 T SRR IESFATESBR
ERTEFREZ (FRHTEFFNETAEEFEEHEASR

in their capacity as key management personnel of the Group FH o
before their appointment as executive directors.
FINANCE COSTS 14. BHIEERZAR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Imputed interest on other payables HE IR EER S 141 185
FERIZZERERA R Z-REFERE 125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECE—AF+=-A=t+—-HLFE

15.

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

15. Fr5BiE%R, (BI%)

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Current tax — the PRC BN EATIE — AR

— provision for the year — F AR (883) (3,9598)

— over/(under) provision in respect —BAFEBERE (BETR)
of prior years 60 (48)
Deferred tax (note 24) EIERLIE (FisE24) 5,492 222
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisfiEe, (FX) 4,669 (3,784)

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at 25%
(2015: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits

during the year.

The income tax credit/(expense) can be reconciled

“EHF 25%)FH e

REBRAEHTIAFR 2 B ERTE F 1% 25%

PrisBiE e,/ (FX) il iR S 2 IKRE R ARAIER

to the (loss)/profit before income tax per the BT (B18) ¥R T
consolidated statements of comprehensive income
as follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREFISHLRT (B518), %5 (22,378) 4,101
Tax credit/(charges) calculated at the XN Fi R 25%
domestic tax rate of 25% —T—HF : 25%)
(2015: 25%) e BEES () 5,594 (1,025)
Effect of different tax rates REA B AR 48 = A A
of companies operating TRBR 2 &
in other jurisdictions (486) (873)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7N A] H15% 5 2 & T 75 2 28
for tax purposes (983) (1,780)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable TAIFURES 2 Fiis R 2
for tax purposes 1,413 90
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised ~ RIERFIEEIE 2 S & (929) (148)
Over/(under) provision in prior years ~ BFFEBEEE,(BETR) 60 (48)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriafiiEe,/ (Fx) 4,669 (3,784)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—XRE+-A=+—HLEE

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. Sk (&FE) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/ RAARETAREREAREERERNREE(E
eamnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity 1B),/ BRITRIEA TSRS
holders of the Company is based on the following
data:
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR¥ETT

(Loss)/earnings for the purposes of HERRER (BE) &

basic (loss)/earnings per share mE2 (EE),&F (16,138) 528
2016 2015
—~RE —T—hF
’000 ‘000
i Fh%
Number of shares &R
Issued ordinary shares of 1 January R—A—ARNEETLRER
(note below) (TF2HtsE) 1,200,000 675,000
Effect of issuance of ordinary shares FTEBBRASNBRBEE L HE
as payment for service fee (note 29) (BF#E29) 1,727 =
Effect of issuance of shares upon SESAREITROZTZE
group reorganisation ‘ - 156,575
Effect of issuance of shares REREZHTRG 2 ¥ 2 (M 25(d)
under the placing (note 25(d)) - 35,343
Weighted average number of LR R £
ordinary shares 1,201,727 866,918
Note: et -
In the calculation of the weighted average of ordinary shares, T E BRI F & B - [if5t 25(c) et o BEEE AL
the number of shares in issue immediately after the completion BITRO T2 ERTTIRGEE - TR IEIE EFARR R 5
of capitalisation issue of shares, as detailed in note 25(c), are TBRRRGEER —E—NF+ —A=F+—HAx=—F—aF
deemed to have been issued to the ordinary shareholders +—A /N (BIRHT 7t 25(d) Bratit 2 A AR (7 5o 5k 5T ) 1
since the date becoming the ordinary shareholders up to 31 BE#7T -

December 2014 or up to 18 November 2015, immediately
before the completion of the placing of shares, as detailed in

note 25(d).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share was the same as SR (BR) BAFNESRERN(EE), /BT
basic (loss)/earnings per share as there were no A ABZE_Z—REFR_F— £¢+*HE+*
dilutive effect on the potential dilutive ordinary shares AIEFEZBEEETRARWES ST E

outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2016

and 2015.

On 18 January 2017, the Company had completed RZE—ttF—A+ N NH ARBERET
the placing of 200,000,000 new ordinary shares and 200,000,000 & A& 1 T 5l A R Bl 2 TR 8 B
leaded to the number of issued number of shares R 1,223,513,043 %38 INZE 1,423,513,0430% - 157
increased from 1,223,513,043 to 1,423,513,043. RHMIFE37 ©

Details refer to note 37.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B AE SRR B ET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

17. 9% - BMEKRE

Leasehold Office  Computer Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
BEMEEE N ElRfE HRAR%E RE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETE ARETR  ARETR ARETRT AR%TR
Cost: A
At 1 January 20115 W=E-R%—F—H 6,080 851 8,598 798 5,108 21,430
Additions e 411 222 84 37 - 754
Disposal HE - - - - (1,050) (1,050)
Derecognised on disposal HE—FRB AR
of a subsidiary HUBRER - (46) (26) - (235) (307)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZ-R¥+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2016 kZE-r~E-A-H 6,491 1,027 8,656 835 3,818 20,827
Additions e 126 705 332 114 1,515 2,192
Acquired through business ~ BBEBAGHIKE (F7E33)
combination (note 33) ‘ - 873 73 35 - 981
Disposal e - - - - (389) (389)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+-A=1-H 6,617 2,605 9,061 984 4,950 24,217
Accumulated depreciation:  B3HTE :
At 1 January 2015 R=E—RF—-FA—H 595 543 4,696 396 4,072 10,302
Charge for the year FRT 637 148 1,238 82 325 2,430
Disposal & = = = = (787) (r87)
Derecognised on disposal HE—HAIHB AR
of a subsidliary HBmER - 40) (25) - (229) (288)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RF+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2016 R=F—7E—-F—-H 1,232 051 5,909 478 3,387 11,657
Charge for the year 3 668 315 1,201 98 377 2,679
Disposal HE - - - - (369) (369)
At 31 December 2016 RZF—"ETZA=1-H 1,900 966 7,130 576 3,401 13,973
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—"ETZA=1-H 4,717 1,639 1,931 408 1,549 10,244
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=+-H 5,259 376 2,747 357 431 9,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

GOODWILL 18. BE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYT T ARBT T
At beginning of year REF] 3,555 3,555

Acquired through business FHIRERSE G (7 33)

combination (note 33) 27,707 -
At end of year RER 31,262 3,555

Goodwill acquired in business combination is
allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating
unit (“CGUSs”) that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. As at 31 December 2016 the
goodwill arose from the acquisition of CGUs which
are engaged in event organisation services, mobile
live broadcasting service and Entertainment On
Demand System service respectively, is as follows:

EBAHRENEEERBER D EEAMIERNZ
EBatnReELBEN(ReEELEM]) - R
T-RFT-A=+t—H8 WERSELEML (D5
REEBDERRY BBEREIREG RREHERGR
IR ) EEREBEWNT

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT

Entertainment On Demand System JREAEE R XA RS
services 26,758 -
Event organisation services TE BN E RIS 3,555 3,555
Mobile live broadcasting services BB HEARTE 949 =
31,262 CIS68

FERIEZERERAE E-RFFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTSRRI

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

18.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Entertainment On Demand System services

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the
Entertainment On Demand System business in PRC
is determined by the value-in-use calculation. The
calculation was carried out by cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
for the five-year period are estimated based on the
management’s expectation for market development
in the first year and an average annual growth rate
of turnover of 50% thereafter until year 5 and a pre-
tax discount rate of 23%. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 3%. The estimated
growth rates used are comparable to the growth rate
for the industry.

The key assumption used in the value-in-use
calculation is the average annual growth rate of
turnover of the Entertainment On Demand System
business, which is determined based on the
management’s expectation for market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Entertainment On Demand
System segment. Any adverse change in the key
assumptions could reduce the recoverable amount
below carrying amount.

The management reassessed the recoverable
amount of the CGU of Entertainment On Demand
System business in PRC as at 31 December 2016
by reference to the discounted cash flow calculation
with the above estimation and was of the opinion
that no impairment loss should be recognised as the
recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its
carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Event organisation services

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the event
organisation business in PRC is determined by the
value-in-use calculation. The calculation was carried
out by cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows for the five year period
are estimated based on an average annual growth
rate of turnover of 5% (2015: 5%) and a pre-tax
discount rate of 17% (2015: 18%). Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%
(2015: 0%). The estimated growth rates used are
comparable to the growth rate for the industry.

The key assumption used in the value-in-use
calculation is the average annual growth rate of
turnover of the event organisation business, which
is determined based on the past performance
and management’s expectation through market
development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to event
organisation segment. Any adverse change in the key
assumptions could reduce the recoverable amount
below carrying amount.

The management reassessed the recoverable
amount of the CGU of event organisation business
in PRC as at 31 December 2016 by reference to
the discounted cash flow calculation with the above
estimation and was of the opinion that no impairment
loss should be recognised as the carrying amount of
the CGU of approximates to it recoverable amount.

18.

e PR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—ARE+-A=+—HLEE

B (&)
EE BRI

FENEBERERRSEESMNMAIKRE SIS
BERAEENEET FEERNREEREHAED
HERAFHEMNPKEE 2B REFAEL - A
FHRAMNBE S RE DIREE ﬁﬁﬁii’ﬁ‘ﬁf5%(_
TN :5%) REMBMBEEI17T%(ZE—1%F :
18%) {d&T ° ﬁiﬁﬂfﬁZféﬂ’]fﬁ/i*/milz/(fﬁ%‘ﬂm%?“

BEREI%(ZF— £¢ 0%)H#EH - FfEMHEHE
RERETREREIEE
EABEAEMEANEIERIREDEMEKS

EENFOFREREE  HREEEBEHMSERN
EHIMERE - MMEMRMITR X BRI KRRA R
EBEN D EBEVESEE R o = ZRERE R
B A RE(E AT Bl & R R E R AREE

EEEEBRSENRRESRENBER LAAFTE
MAER_FE—R"F+_A=+—BEPEREH
ReELBUNMNAIKREEHE YRS EEB’%%%F
FEMMEREREATKRESEES  WEA
HEEE -

HEAISEZERERAT
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

18.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
Mobile live broadcasting services

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the mobile
live broadcasting business in PRC is determined
by the value-in-use calculation. The calculation
was carried out by cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows for the
five year period are estimated based on the
management’s expectation for the market in the first
year and an average annual growth rate of turnover
of 20% thereafter until year 5 and a pre-tax discount
rate of 27%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 3%. The estimated growth
rates used are comparable to the growth rate for the
industry.

The key assumption used in the value-in-use
calculation is the average annual growth rate of
turnover of the mobile live broadcasting business,
which is determined based on the management’s
expectation for market development. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to mobile live broadcasting segment. Any adverse
change in the key assumptions could reduce the
recoverable amount below carrying amount.

The management reassessed the recoverable
amount of the CGU of mobile live broadcasting
business in PRC as at 31 December 2016 by
reference to the discounted cash flow calculation
with the above estimation and was of the opinion
that no impairment loss should be recognised as the
recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its
carrying amount.
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BEEERE

TEBSERRSELEVMA KO SRETEBRE
REEAEETE - sAEERREEEEMENRE
hERRNYBEEZRSRERAEL - AFH
BMHREERENRBEEEHE - FMEERNE
HRREREEENF FERRFHERE20% M
BHHTRKR27% A5t - AFHEZRNRESRE
PAMERT DRI R R 3% HEH - FrE MAFHERE
BT REMEE -

EREEAEMEANEIERRABDHERERZ
EENTOFREEE  HREEEBHMSERN
EHIMERE - MMEMNITR X BRI KRRAR
BBERED MO ERR - T2EREROEMAHE
Bl s Al B SRR EENREE ©

EEEAESERRBSREFEER LAMGFE
MR _E—R"FET_A=+—BBHEREEY
ReEABUMNATREOSRE YRS ARESE
ABEMNEAKRESBEARNEREE  WEAER
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. EFEEE
Customer
relationships
EEBZ
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 W _Z—AF—H—H -
and 31 December 2016 TR+ -A=+—HkFK
—E—RXFt+_A=1+—H 4,440
Accumulated amortisation: R .
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—H 888
Charge for the year FRZH 888
31 December 2015 R_E—RAF+_A=+—H 1,776
Charge for the year FRZH 888
31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=A=+—H 2,664
Net carrying amount: BREFE :
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RFE+ZA=+—H 1,776
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AFE+_HA=+—H 2,664
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. B RHAEKRRKE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Trade receivables =) e e 32,226 14,554
Prepayments and deposits FENFIERES 36,053 7,747
Other receivables E b el FRIA 6,300 2,854
74,579 25,155

RERE ZRUGIR (FIRRRERR) ZER B HIN
RREEDHTIAT -

The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of
impairment losses), based on invoice dates, as of the
end of year, is as follows:

HEAISEZERERAR
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ARE B IS IR R M EE
for the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z-—AE+-A=+—HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. EZRHEMERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Within 30 days (note) 30 KM (FisE) 30,156 13,306
31 to 90 days 31 290K 1,090 409
91 to 180 days 91 2180k 300 =
Over 180 days 180 KA E 680 839
32,226 14,554

Note: Htat -

Included in trade receivables within 30 days as at 31
December 2016 are the amounts of RMB29,336,000 (2015:
RMB11,869,000) for which all services were provided but not
yet invoiced.

The credit period granted to trade debtors ranges 0-90 days
from the invoice dates.

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews trade
and other receivables for evidence of impairment on both
an individual and collective basis. Based on the impairment
assessment, no impairment loss has been recognised as at
31 December 2016 (2015: nil). The Group did not hold any
collateral as security or other credit enhancement over the trade
receivables.

The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of
impairment losses), based on due dates, as of the
end of year, is as follows:

REB—FNFFZA=1—H ' KR BI0OXALIEZERA
H B A K 29,336,0007T (= F— 7% - AR H 11,869,000
TT) B BIEERFAD AR TR ESR -

JEW IR 2 (5 BRI A %R AR F 02 90X °

RIREHIR - KEE A5 R F A EF T 5 KA A WA
B EHEGE LB RE © REREFG  R=F—NFT=H
=+ —HIERRIE DR EEE (—F—RF - ) o RAEEL
FEE 5 WA RIS B E (iR (E RIS RN IZ RAERIE
i

RERE S REWFIE (KR RERE) ZE 8 H AR
BROMTT

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Not past due R HA

Past due but not impaired BE R RRIE
Within 30 days 30 KA

31 to 90 days 31 290K

91 to 180 days 91 £180K
Over 180 days 180 KA E

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

29,806 6,746
1,090 6,309
300 =
680 997
350 502
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Trade receivables that were not past due relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as
there have not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on
invoice dates, as of the end of year is as follows:

20.

21.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALFE

B 5 R EMmEWRE (&)

AR EHRBGRIRETMBENCEIEFE

EBHERREZEZREFEANAEEAER
EARBRZEFAR - REBELR  EEEMR
EMELSERZSERTRRERE  BEEEX
HEEREE L AERDBARER B -

EZEARE

REREHRNFIRRERE A MNRESIITOT

2016 2015

—E-XRE —E—hHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Within 30 days (note) 30K (FisE) 1,486 2,668
31 to 90 days 31 290K 82 =
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365Kk 21 453
Over 365 days 365 KA E 123 1
1,712 3,122

Note:

Included in trade payables within 30 days as at 31 December
2016 are the amounts of RMB904,000 (2015: RMB2,004,000)
for which all services were provided by the suppliers but not yet
invoiced.

Wit
REF—NELZH=1—H i3 30XAEE ZRENHE

EIFEA R 904,0007T (= F—FEF : 2,004,0007T) @ HIERY
EFEHARFE(E 4 R FI A FEE -

HEAISEZERERAR
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ARE BTSRRI EE
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—XRF+-A=+—HLEFE

22. OTHER PAYABLES

22, HfttFEMARRIEA

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Current: E
Accruals FEETER 8,324 8,901
Other payables H e FRIE 1,836 3,184
Receipt in advance TRl EIR 1,195 7
Deposit received BlES 210 -
Deferred rent payable FERREER S 3,418 2,836
14,983 14,928
Non-current: FRE :
Other payables E e 3RIE - 585
23. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 23. EAZHARKE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—-RHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
Fair value of consideration shares XK SN KERD ZAAE
for business combination
— Capital Land Digital Entertainment ~ — ZT 2R (AL R) BRI AR A A
Co. Ltd. (“Capital Land”) (x5 l)
— current —RE 3,739 =
— non-current —3EmE 4,919 =
8,658 -

As referred to note 33(a), as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of 51% equity interest in Capital
Land (as defined in note 33(a)), the Company is
required to issued 37,455,224 new shares to the
vendors at a price of HK$2.79 per share, of which
16,266,667 shares were issued on 15 November
2016. The fair value of consideration shares
for business combination at acquisition date is
RMB13,910,000. As the considerations shares
are subject to lock-up and dealing restrictions and
adjustments as details in note 33(a), they were
classified as financial liabilities and subsequently re-
measured to fair value.

A fair value gain of RMB5,252,000 was recognised in
profit and loss accordingly.
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AR 5E33(a) ATt + 1E AU EE 7T R 51% IR #E Ay 30
PRE(EERWEI3Q)  ARAR ARSI 2.79
ST B IR B 1T7, 455,224 IR FH R T &/ H
716,266,667 KON =T —~"F+—A+A B
T RBEBRABESAHNRERGZAREAA
R 13,910,000 7T ° FARRAERR D R 7E33(a)
HMZZEERRGRH LA  BEWRSE LS H
BEREEENTEEARE -
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The components of deferred tax liabilities and

24.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-ZT—F+-A=1+—HLFE
EEHREEE (BF)

ERAaMBRNRERNELEHBERBEREEMAK

assets recognised in the consolidated statements of Mo G EHEE R -
financial position and the movements are as follows:
Fair value
adjustment
Tax onintangible
loss assets Total
BREE
HIEFE ZARERAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR%T T AR¥T T
At 1 January 2015 RZEBE—RF—HA—H - (888) (888)
Credited to profit or loss (note 15) s+ AEzE (FizE15) - 222 222
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RF+_A=+—H - (666) (666)
Acquired through business BIBFEFA IR
combination (note 33) (Ffts£33) 1,028 - 1,028
Credited to profit or loss (note 15) s A (KiFE15) 5,270 222 5,492
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+A=+—H 6,298 (444) 5,854

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4(), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets totaling RMB1,077,000 (2015: RMB148,000)
in respect of certain accumulated tax losses of
RMB4,308,000 (2015: RMB592,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.

RIEFT T 43) TS TR - AEBWERLE T Rat
FRIAEE AR 4308000 (—E—HF : ARK
592,000 7T ) fERELET I8 & E 85T AR 1,077,000
TL(ZZ—RF : AR¥148,0007T) @ REANEE
TRIERARER R E R - A b 30 /8 R 2R 8 iR At g A AT
FFEE -

HEAISEZERERAR
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ARE BTSRRI EE
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—XRF+-A=+—HLEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A
Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITRA
2016 2015
B e ik
Equivalent to Equivalent to
Number HKD’000 RMB’000 Number HKD'000 RMB'000
BER EESS
L] TEr  ARETR Y L  ARETR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE AT LER
Authorised BE
At 1 January R—A—H 8,000,000,000 80,000 67,024 38,000,000 380 299
Increase in authorised share captal K= ZE-RFE+—F=H
on 3 November 2015 (note (@) AERAE M (k@) - - - 7,962,000,000 79,620 66,725
At 31 December Rt=A=t-R 8,000,000,000 80,000 67,024 8,000,000,000 80,000 67,024
Issued and fully paid BROREEHR
Ordinary shares =3l
At beginning of the year REA] 1,200,000,000 12,000 9,821 1,000 = =
lssue of orclnary shares (note (o)) BRI (5 () - - - 99,000 1 1
Capitalisation issue of shares (note (¢) ~ BAMEEATIRI (i (0)) - - - 899,900,000 8,999 7,351
lssue of shares under placing (note (d)  IRERELER1TAR (3 (d) - - - 300,000,000 3,000 2,469
lssue of shares for payment of BIRBRESR
senvice fee (note 29) %% (Wi 20) 7,246,376 7 63 - - -
Issue of shares for acquisition of KRB RRETRG
a subsidiary (note (¢) (Frzt(e) 16,266,667 163 144 - - -
1,223,513,043 12,235 10,028  1,200,000,000 12,000 9,821
Less: Consideration shares whichare i : (/ PREARERR
subjected to recall (note (g) (P& (e) (16,266,667) (163) (144) - - -
At end of the year RER 1,207,246,376 12,072 9,884 1,200,000,000 12,000 9,821

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

Notes:

@

(®)

©

(c)

(e

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Island
on 1 November 2013 with an authorised share capital
of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) 380,000 divided into
38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. On
the same date, one ordinary share of HK$0.01 was
issued. Pursuant to the written resolutions passed
on 8 November 2015 the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$80,000,000 by the creation of an additional
79,620,000 ordinary shares.

On 21 April 2015, 25,000 shares of the Company
were allotted to an independent third party at cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000. At the same date,
66,600 and 7,400 shares of the Company were allotted
to Guang Rui and Ever Ring respectively at par value.

On 3 November 2015, a total of 899,900,000 shares of
the Company were allotted to the existing shareholders,
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$8,999,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the placing took place during the year ended
81 December 2015, 300,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.39
per share for a total cash consideration (before share
issuance expenses) of approximately HK$117,000,000.

As disclosed in note 23, included in the shares issued
for acquisition of a subsidiary were 16,266,667 shares
which are subjected lock-up and dealing restrictions and
adjustments. These shares are classified as financial
liabilities until the date when the relevant restrictions are
released.

Represents amount less than 1,000 of relevant currency

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-ZT—F+-A=1+—HLFE

B ()
EEREBTRA (8)
@ ARAR-F—ZF1—A—AuHSHEBIMAT -

®)

(©

(@)

©

V2 TE R #3380,000,8 7T ([ /&L ) + 534 38,000,000 %
FREEC.01ETH EERK - REIH + F7T—REE
0.018r2 B#R - RER=-F—AF1+—H=HiFE#E
A EE R EE - BB RS Y 79,620,000 R @R -
KR E]HEE AR AN 1 380,000 78 7T 42 412 80,000,000 /%
s

R-F—FEOA-—+—H  ARGE B E=FF
#25,000% % 17+ B % X 18 #320,000,000& 7T ° KA
H + A2 F]66,6008R %17 % 7, 40088 R (7 12 [ET 18 73 5/l %
Tt R (K

R-F—FFEF—HA=ZH » AR FBBEER TR 75
1B BRI B 2 588,999,000,8 70 LA F#E 7 B A /9 77 sU # IET 18
(A3 R BB AT 24 #£899,900,0008 A B FESE AR 17 °

RIERBE - FE—AF+ = A=—+—HIFFERETH
& - BIEEIRIR70.898 .2 (B15%77300,000,0008%
RETIEO.0187T.2 F ZEAR - BHELIE(FI% R
7TEIsZAI) #7117,000,000,87T °

ZOft i 23 i FE - BB B A Al #1772 R 17 15
16,266,667 iR 15 22 & & B B R %I 71 7] 7412 A2 17 ©
ZERGAIEREHEE - ERIGRIR IR AL -

e BB LI B 758 1,000 7T
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ARE BTSSR AR AR
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—RF+-A=+—HLEFE

26. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 26.

Capital Land, 51% owned by the Group, Beijing Yiju
Creative Technology Limited (“Yiju Creative”), 65%
owned by the Group and Beijing Octagons Impact
Communications Co. Ltd. (“Octagons Impact”), 80%
owned by the Group, have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI”). Summarised financial information in
relation to the NCI of Capital Land, Yiju Creative and
Octagons Impact, before intra-group elimination are
presented below:

(@) Capital Land

FERER

RIE(BAEEEES1%) RS RRIEREAE
RAR(IHEEE ] (BAREEHEA 65%) KIERN
TERXERARAR (TNTER]) (BAKEE
B 80%) A BNz ([ FHERER]) - B
FOLE - HERAIERNTTERE S B R H A a8
MEATEER 25T

(@ =Ifm

For the period from

date of acquisition to

31 December 2016
BWEAHEE—ZE— K5
+ZA=+—H1LHH

RMB’000
AR®F T

Revenue e 43
Loss for the period HAfAI &S 18 (2,215)
Total comprehensive loss B2 E/BERHE

for the period (2,215)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEIFERERNBE R EBEERE

loss allocated to NCI (1,086)
Cash flow used in operating activities &< EENFAE SR E (109)
Cash flow generated from REFHEERSRE

investing activities 1
Net cash outflow e mEFE (108)
As at 31 December 2016
R+=HA=+—8H —E-RE

RMB’000
ARET T

Non-current assets EmENEE 2,390
Current assets MENEEE 18,479
Current liabilities MEAE (1,219)
Net assets BEFE 19,650
Accumulated non-controlling interests R &t FEFERRAERS 9,628

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALEFE

26. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 26. FFIERRAEL (])
(CONTINUED)
(b) Yiju Creative (b) SEAIR
For the period from
date of acquisition to
31 December 2016
BRBEAREE - —RE
+-A=+—HILHE
RMB’000
AR®TRT
Revenue & 120
Loss for the period HAfAI & 18 (9,022)
Total comprehensive B2 E/EERHE
loss for the period (9,022)
Loss and total comprehensive HIEE IR RE R A EE &
loss allocated to NCI (note) ZHAEEREE () =
Cash flow generated KETRESELERSRE
from operating activities 635
Cash flow used in WERESFARERE
investing activities (168)
Net cash inflow WEMAFEE 467
2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Non-current assets ERBNEE 4,119
Current assets MENVE B 5,606
Current liabilities mENEE (17,804)
Net liabilities BEFE (8,079)
Accumulated non-controlling 2t IR R (M)
interests (note) -
Note: The Group confirmed that non-controlling Wit : KEBHER - ZREIZ A IR FEEE S

interest of Yiju Creative have no liabilities on the ZETEERBIE o
accumulated losses incurred.
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BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

26. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 26. FFIERRAED (E])
(CONTINUED)
(c) Octagons Impact (c) NLER
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue g 2,894 1,053
Loss for the year FNEIE (2,955) (527)
Total comprehensive FAEZHEGERRE
loss for the year (2,955) (527)
Loss and total comprehensive DI E IR E R R B R
loss allocated to NCI FEEEESR (485) (211)
Cash flow used in operating activities && EEFTAEERZE (2,368) (1,036)
Cash flow used in investing activities R EEBFTAE S RE (5) 87)
Cash flow generated from WERHELERESRE
financing activities - 3,750
Net cash (outflow)/inflow He (rd)/ RAFE (2,373) 2,627
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
As at 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—8H
Non-current assets SEMENE 55 77
Current assets mBEE 1,674 3,354
Current liabilities mEBE (1,461) (208)
Net assets BEFE 268 3,223
Accumulated non-controlling interests 25t FEEE A% fEeR 54 539
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27. RESERVES

The Group

(@)

The following describes the nature and purpose
of each reserve within owners’ equity:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands, share premium
of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distributions or
dividend payments, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Other reserve
[t represents the fair value of the share-based
payments over the consideration received.

Merger reserve

It represents the difference between the
nominal value of shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate fully paid
registered capital of subsidiaries pursuant to
the group reorganisation in 2015.

27. f#E

e IR HRAR ML

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

FEE

(@)

TXEAEEARDZE NEREIEED MA

%

K18
REFEHREREVEARERNF22F - AR
AR D KK ER SR AIE LR X518
RAPEEIHZER  ARAAENSESE
BRAMEARZRET  BARBZBDEE
RERBRRD IR MKERS

H b1
Hig AR fn SEM KA A EEE WK E
ZER

=N
HEARRERHTROEAERREN _T—1
FEESHNBRARNETEMEANREZME
MZEE -
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w

J—

144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

27. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27. k()
(b) Reserves of the Company (b) ARDFHE
Movements in the Company’s reserves are as RAREE BT ¢
follows
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BRAD BB ZETEBE “aEt
RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT ARBTIT
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF
—HA—BZ&% 1,574 (131) 1,443
Issue of ordinary shares BEITEBEAR
(note 25 (b)) (Mf3E25(0)) 15,814 = 15,814
Capitalisation issue of shares B ETHAD
(note 25 (c)) (Mf7E25(c)) (7,351) = (7,351)
Issue of shares under placing BB EZITRG
(note 25 (d)) (MfzE25(d)) 93,833 = 93,833
Share Issue expense B& 121 TRI 2 (8,706) - (8,706)
Loss for the year FRNEE - (9,559) (9,559)
Balance at 31 December 2015 W-_ZT—H&F+ A
and 1 January 2016 =t—8k
—E—R"F—H—H
2 KEER 95,164 (9,690) 85,474
Issue of shares for payment BT D AIES AT
of service fee (note 29) fR7% & (FIzE29) 17,149 = 17,149
Loss for the year FABE - (2,165) (2,165)
Balance at 31 December 2016 WM —Z— &+ A
=t+—HZz&% 112,313 (11,855) 100,458
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 28. ALQTFEMBMRE
THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BizE AR¥TR ARETT
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—TEK B A RMIEE = =
Total non-current assets FRBEELE =* =
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURBT B A B IE 67,234 28,280
Prepayment SEINE e 29,308 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEHEY 16,321 69,470
Total current assets REEEHAE 112,863 97,750
Total assets BEEHBE 112,863 97,750
Current liabilities nREBaE
Accruals FEsTE A 2,521 2,455
Net current assets REEEFE 110,342 95,295
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 110,342 95,295
NET ASSETS BEEFE 110,342 95,295
Equity attributable to owners RAREEAELER
of the Company
Share capital %N 25 9,884 9,821
Reserves & 27 100,458 85,474
TOTAL EQUITY MR 110,342 95,295
& Represents amount less than RMB1,000 “ &5 B LR R 1,000 7T
On behalf of the board of directors REREZS
Philip Jian Yang Yang Shiyuan
&l BitE
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ARE B IS SRR EE
for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z-—RF+-A=+—HLEFE

29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 29. LR AEBENATR
On 14 September 2016, the Group entered into two RZE—RNFNA+TEA @ NEBEHERE BT FHE
agreements with two independent broadcasters (TZEER]) BEFEIT MM 0 - REBEZSHE -
(the “Broadcasters”) separately pursuant to which ZETHREEAEENBRHER TS LIRHEET
Broadcasters agreed to provide certain service to BREEARBAR_E—A"F+ARHRZEETES
the Group’s mobile live broadcasting platform and HAd s [ 3177,246,376 AR B E#A - Bl U E!
the Company allotted and issued 7,246,376 ordinary IR AR BERIRIEZE FHERERERERES
shares of the Company to the Broadcasters in total EERBEEME -
on 5 October 2016. The fair value of services to
be received was determined with reference to the
compensation repayable by the Broadcasters to the
Company should they fail to deliver the services.
No service fee has been recognised in profit or EREEE S "FFEERERPER - N
loss during the year ended 31 December 2016. T—RE+-_A=+—H "  AR¥17,212,000 (FR
Prepaid service fee of RMB17,212,000 (equivalent 20,000,000 7)) TR RS E D BIEEE 5 R EAM
to HK$20,000,000) have been recorded under trade RUFRIE Z A ©
and other receivables as at 31 December 2016.
30. OPERATING LEASES 30. R&EHE
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable KEHENREAEE e TEAEYEEIHE
by the Group for certain of its lease properties. $ o HBKEEA—FEL+F  HEBETFTINHE
Leases are negotiated for terms between 1 year KEEETE S IERNES -
to 7 years at fixed rentals or at rentals with fixed
percentage of increment in agreed time frame.
2016 2015
—B-RE —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYT T ARBT T
Minimum lease payments =EEERNK 4,048 3,278
The total future minimum lease payments are due as KRR FEBE N REREREASRaT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Not later than one year TER—F 5,217 3,246
Later than one year and BR—FETERAST
not later than five years 24,304 15,482
Later than five years BRAE 14,641 13,173
44,162 31,901
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BESRS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances @ BHEEUBREREMBIFAEER S KE
disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated Gh REARSEHEBERBATEARS ¢

financial statements, the Group had the
following significant transactions with related
parties during the year:

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—AHF
Related party relationship Type of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
BESBE RBEH AR¥T T AREBFTT
Executive director Waive of finance lease obligations - 310
HITES HemEREAE
Shareholder A Salaries 75 75
AR A e
Shareholder B Salaries 75 75
IR B e
Company controlled by a close Consideration for the disposal
family member of a shareholder of a subsidiary - 400
AR AT FRR BERK B 15 2 A A HE—FHNERRRNRE
(b)  The amounts due from non-controlling interests (o) BUCEHERESRIBAEER 2ERREXK
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on RF(EAR o
demand.
(€0 The remuneration of directors and other © EEREMETZEEREMERNFNZEHN
members of key management during the year JI e
was as follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Wages and salaries TENES 4,350 2,178
Social insurance and housing fund R EkEEAES 143 173
Mandatory provident fund S ATES 30 10
4,523 2,361
The emoluments paid or payable to members of key ENHENEZEERENE 2 BRUATAAR :

management were within the following bands:

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—RF

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

N A&

Nil to RMB1,000,000 =z AR¥ 1,000,000 7T 7 5
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-_ZT—X"F+-A=+—HLEE

32.

SUBSIDIARIES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Name

&8

New Talent Media Company Limited*
TRERULEFERAR

Starry Knight Entertainment Co., Ltd.*
TRAERGRIR U ERER AR

Beiing Joy Star Production Co., Ltd.*
ERXFEDTEUERERAR

Beiiing New Image Media Co. Ltd.*
EREEERTRUERERAR

Beijing Great Wise Media Co., Ltd.*
ERRBEA X BEER AR

Beijing Emphasis Media Co. Ltd.*
FTRERDZERERAR)

Beijing Octagons Impact
Communications Co. Ltd.*

RN\ BRI EER AR

Capital Land Digital Entertainment Co. Ltd.

RIEHR(QR) RRER AR

Beijiing Yiju Creative Techno\ogy Limited*
IR SRAEMRBRAF

* For identification purpose only

Country and
date of
incorporation
AL AL
BXKAH

PRC

25 Dec 2013

H
“E-—=#+-A-1+EH

PRC

3 Sept 2009

HE
“ZTNFNAZA

PRC

27 Dec 2006

#
“EENF+-A=ttH

PRC

23 Feb 2005

HE
—EERE-_A-1+=H
PRC

17 Jul 2003

HE

I =
PRC

17 Jul 2002

HE
“TE-FtAf+tA
PRC

16 Feb 2015

HE
“Z-AF-At+iAH
PRC

17 May 2016

HE
“E-ERA+LA
PRC

3 November 2014
HE
“T-MmE+—A=H

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

32. EAT

KARR =T —

AENT
Particulars of

Place of issued and paid up

operation and share capital/

principal activity registered capital

SEHER BRAIRBZRE/

TEEH S EAFE

PRC, HK$71,270,000

Investment 71,270,000 /7T

holding

PR - REER

PRC, RMB3,000,000

Program production AR 3,000,0007

and event organisation

i - EE SHE

éﬁﬁw

PRC, RMB3,000,000

Program production AR 3,000,0007

and evem organisation

i - #R SHE

&éﬁ i

PRC, RMB3,000,000

Program production AR 3,000,000

RN EE

PRC, RMB3,000,000

Program production AR 3,000,0007C

thE - B BHE

PRC, RMB6,000,000

Program production AR 6,000,000

el iR SiE

PRC, RMB3, 750,000

Provision of integrated AR 3,750,000 7

marketing services

E - R

LHRE

PRC, RMB3,434,694

Provision of Entertainment AR 3,434,604 7T

On Demand System

and related services

B REREEERS
RARB AR

PRC,
Provision of mobile live
broadcasting services

E - REBHERRS

RMB1,260,000
AR 1,260,000

Directly

NET_A=+T—HHNXIEHNBER

Percentage of
ownership interests/

voting rights/profit share

FribRE RER/
aRRHE L
Indirectly
=84 i

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 80%

= 51%

= 65%
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BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS DURING THE 33. FREKWE

YEAR

The following table summarises the considerations TR AR Z AT KA EBE O S HRE -
paid for business acquisitions completed in the EREBRERBRHKREHROARIEEREER
current period, and the fair value of identifiable assets RNAfE :

and liabilities of the acquirees at the respective
acquisition date:

Capital Land Yiju Creative Total
IR ZBAE et
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
B3 (2) HI3E (o)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®T ARBFT

Property, plant and equipment L E YN L] 981 - 981
Deferred tax assets RERMSTHEE 712 316 1,028
Cash and cash equivalents ReENRREEFEEY 844 9 853
Other receivables, deposits EAh pE IR
and prepayments e RIBRNFRIE 262 6 268
Other payables and accrued charges ~ Efb e FRTE X fEFTE A (1,498) (20) (1,518)
Amount due to the Company FERTZAN A RIFRIE (3,435) - (3,435)
(2,134) 311 (1,823)
Capital to be injected by the Company &R F# T & A
as part of purchase consideration WEREN—I D 24,000 - 24,000
21,866 311 22,177
Non-controlling interests eI A (10,714) - (10,714)
11,152 311 11,463
The provisional fair value of REFZNERMEALE :
consideration transfer:
Cash consideration RERE 24,000 1,260 25,260
Contingent consideration share SRR ERD 13,910 - 13,910
37,910 1,260 39,170
Goodwill arising on acquisition IWHRE £ REE 26,758 949 27,707
Satisfied by: SRER
— Cash consideration —RERE - 1,260 1,260
— Capital injection —F& 24,000 - 24,000
— Contingent consideration — e A
payables (note 23) RAE (FizE23) 13,910 = 13,910
37,910 1,260 39,170
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS ERRMET

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS DURING THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

(@)

Acquisition of Capital Land

On 15 November 2016, the Group acquired
51% of the equity interests of Capital
Land, a company whose principal activity
is the development and operation of an
Entertainment On Demand System in PRC.

The acquisition was made with the aims
to enhance the Group’s exposure in the
Entertainment On Demand System industry
in PRC. The consideration includes a capital
injection of RMB24,000,000, 16,266,667
ordinary shares of the Company paid at
the acquisition date (“Initial Consideration
Shares”) and a performance-based contingent
consideration of RMB61,200,000 in cash or
26,761,290 ordinary shares of the Company.

In accordance with the sale and purchase
agreement dated 26 September 2016, the part
of the purchase consideration is contingent
on the results of Capital Land for the following
specified periods. There are two targets
mentioned in the agreement, (loss)/profit after
taxation target (“Profit Target”) and revenue
target (“Revenue Target”). Profit Target requires
the loss after taxation of Capital Land not more
than RMB19,700,000 for the period from 1
October 2016 to 30 September 2017 and profit
after taxation for the remaining period not less
than the target as set out in below. Revenue
Target requires the revenue of Capital Land not
less than the target as set out in below.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

33. FREKWE (&)

(a)

BRI

R-ZFE—R"F+—A+tHA  AEERBERT
MR 51% g - X AR EBEFAE/ETE
R MQEIRERIERS

WEEE IR S AN S B Eh RIRAER R R G172
MmEHhE - RELERERERIEARE
24,000,000 * &N R 716,266,667 % & &8 i%
([ R ERD ) RRRAER N ARERE
AR 61,200,000 LA A A 26,761,290 A%
‘A% -

BEABHA-Z—AFNA-+ HNEEH
FOWBERBHMOBURR IR T
THEMNES - P REAMEEZ - B
®(ER),/ CEMBE(CEFBEZE]) Rk B
ZE(WEERZE]D - mHEERERIERN-Z
—NFTA—HE-ZT—tFhLA=THEMH
KBTI 1B B B A R ¥ 19,700,000 7T M £4
TEARI AR FR 18 m FI R DR T XCATE B AZ - IR
HBERERTIRWET DN T X B -
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS DURING THE 33. FREBUEE (F)

Note:

There are minimum threshold applied on the revenue
and loss after taxation of Capital Land for the year ending
30 September 2017. Revenue and loss after taxation for
that year should be not less than RMBS5, 700,000 and not
more than RMBZ22,400,000 respectively in order to be
entitled for that year’s contingent consideration. There is
no such limit for the remaining years.

If the actual results of Capital Land for the
period from 1 October 2016 to 30 September
2017 do not meet the Profit Target and
Revenue Target (collectively “Performance
Target”), the Company can recover part or
all of Initial consideration shares, according
to an adjustment mechanism primarily based
on the shortfall between Performance Target
and the actual results of Capital Land divided
by the number of Consideration Shares. If the
actual results of Capital Land for the remaining
period do not meet the Performance Target, the
Company will adjust contingent consideration
based on an adjustment mechanism primarily
based on shortfall between performance and
actual result of Capital Land divided by the
number of consideration shares. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that Capital
Land will be able to achieve part of Performance
Targets; adjustment has already made to
purchase consideration.

YEAR (CONTINUED)
(a) Acquisition of Capital Land (continued) (a) WEBETIR (M)
(Loss)/profit after
Period involved (note) Revenue target taxation target
FrS R/ (frt) MBi% (5E)
hEBE Pl |=R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Year ending 30 September 2017 HEZZT—tFNA=THILEFE 10,900 (19,700)
Year ending 30 September 2018 BE=T—N\FNA=THILEFE 98,000 17,500
Year ending 30 September 2019 BE=T—NFNA=THILEFE 231,000 67,300
Year ending 30 September 2020  BEZT_TFENA=THILEFE 231,000 64,300
Year ending 30 September 2021 HEZZ-_—FNA=THILFE 231,000 62,500

it -

FOTEE2E BN E —E—+FNA=1HIFFE
REGERELK - FITHRZERA WS TATULRAR
#5, 700,000 K Fi 4 B8 T2 A R 122,400,000 ° 1R
BA T E AR REEES o

HWRTER T "F+HA—HE-_F—+tF
NA=+ A RN ERRERR T XRAEEHM
BEEkEamER(REAIREBRZ]) AKX
N B AR IR B A U () 3R 00 s 2 AR AR (B
Bty - MBI ER USRI B REFTEERR
BRZBERUARERNDNEE BER  MEUT
MR T B ERXEERN T XAERRE
132 - BIARR AR B A B S AR R ARE -
ZHEHEEATERREABRRENZES
Eift - ARRESAR - sULAKEERED
FZABRICREBEREFLRE -

HEAISEZERERAR
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS DURING THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

(@)

Acquisition of Capital Land (continued)

At the acquisition date, the fair value of
the contingent consideration shares of
RMB13,910,000 was determined by reference
to the quoted market price of the Company’s
share of HK$0.42 (equivalent to RMBO0.37)
each at the date of acquisition multipled
by the number of contingent consideration
shares (37,455,224 shares in total of which
16,266,667 shares have been issued on 15
November 2016) based on the assessment of
the probability of the contingent consideration
as at 15 November 2016. The acquisition-
related costs of RMB313,000 have been
expensed and are included in general and
administrative expenses.

The fair value of other receivables amounted
to RMB262,000. The gross amount of these
receivables is RMB262,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and it is
expected that the full contractual amounts can
be collected.

Since the acquisition date, Capital Land
has contributed revenue of approximately
RMB43,000 and loss of approximately
RMB2,214,000 to Group. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2016, the Group’s
revenue and loss for the year would have
been approximately RMB78,446,000 and
RMB21,971,000 respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2016, nor
is it intended to be a projection of future
performance.

Net cash outflow arising on business
acquisition during the year:

33. FREKWE (&)

(a)

WS UT R ()

RWEBE  IARBRODAABARE
13,910,000 7T 32 R UKEE B BB AR RIS &
B IRE 0.42 80 (ERAREE0.37 78) £ A
BEE-_E—AR"Ft+—ATHBEGBESEX
HI S AR B R R 5T B A s AR B I D AR ER
(& $£37,455,224 1% + & 1 16,266,667 fx £ —
T—ARE+—A+ABBET)ET - WHEHE
RARK A A R# 313,000 L E S 88 R et A— M K
THAX -

H b fE WA A A BB AR 262,000 7T °
%5 WG IEM R EE A AR 262,0007T ° 7%
LR EMEREMEREZBELSEER B
g o

AUEBHSE RImcRAEEDRE
B U 25 40 A R 543,000 7T K BT 1 4 A R K
2,214,0007C ° WM EER —Z—"F— A —H3%
& RSB EREEES AN ARE
78,446,000 7T & AFR# 21,971,000 7T ° HEE
RHEEHE - TEREAMKBENR T —XF
—A—HERAEEER I ERA WS K&
EEWIETR T BMEARRKIBNTER -

FAEBWBELNR SR LT

2016
—E-RF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash and cash equivalents BEWERE NIRSEEY
acquired (844)
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33. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS DURING THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

(b)

Acquisition of Yiju Creative

On 11 May 2016, the Group acquired 100% of
the equity interests of Yiju Creative a company
whose principal activity is provision of mobile
live broadcasting services in PRC.

The acquisition was made with the aims to
enhance the Group’s exposure in the mobile
live broadcasting industry in PRC. The above
consideration includes a cash consideration of
RMB1,260,000 paid at the acquisition.

The fair value of other receivables amounted
to RMB6,000. The gross amount of these
receivables is RMB6,000. None of these
receivables have been impaired and it is
expected that the full contractual amounts can
be collected.

Since the acquisition date, Yiju Creatine
has contributed revenue of approximately
RMB120,000 and loss of approximately
RMB9,022,000 to Group’s revenue and loss.
If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2016, the Group’s revenue and loss would
have been approximately RMB78,435,000 and
approximately RMB17,714,000 respectively.
The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future performance.

Net cash outflow arising on business
acquisition during the year:

e IR HRAR ML

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

33. FREKWE (&)

(b)

g Z BRI

R-ZE—RFAA+T—H  AEEKREZZE
BHEERE  ZARETBXHRETERHE
BEE R -

WEEERSASEETERHERTENT
B8 - BERESERNKEBRXMNHRER
BAK®1,260,0007T °

Hit BUYRIEN AR BERARKEE6,0007T © %
FRKKIENRER/ARKEG6,0007T © ZF/E
WRRIR R E MR 2 8 a A& F A BB
[B] o

BUEE B R - SREIEERAEBAKE X
BB BB B zS 49 A R ¥ 120,000 7T & &5 18
#IA R %9,022,0007T © fWIER =F —/NF—
A—RZEE - AIREE G REBEED B &
4 NR ¥ 78,435,000 7T M4 AR #17,714,000
TC o HEERHEMIA - TEEAMUKEER
T R"F— A HERAEEER A ERD
Wzt RIS EFEFERIET - I RIERRKEKIR
HITEA o

FAXBWBELNRSRLFHE -

2016
—B-XF

RMB’000
ARBTR

Cash consideration paid
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

ENRERE
BEUBERE KRG EEY

1,260
©)

1,251

HEAISEZERERAR
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34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 34. BRERNEIHNEHEERSHEBZHE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amount and TRITERHEERBENERABRARE
fair value of financial assets and liabilities:

2016 2015
—EB-RE e
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount  Fair value

ARE{E DA ARE{E AVDy|
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARETT ARETT

Financial assets SWMEE
Loans and receivables B R IEW
— Cash and cash equivalents —Be KR FEY 43,349 43,349 109,631 109,631
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 KHMEKKIEA 38,526 38,526 17,408 17,408
Financial liabilities measured BRBER AT E

at amortised cost ZEmas
— Trade payables — B S EMNFRIA 1,712 1,712 3,122 3,122
— Other payables — H A FERIFRIE 10,160 10,160 12,670 12,670
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WIkERAREFEZeR T ABRREENEEEE
include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other Y - B 5 REMBYHRIBRE S R EAERFRIE

receivables and trade and other payables.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value AR RS EAEE - BRAEEQ N EEE °
approximates to fair value.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and currency risk.

(@) Creditrisk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables and bank
deposits. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customers operate. Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of trade
customers. Trade receivables are due within
0-90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has
a certain concentration of credit risk as 20%
(2015: 16%) and 44% (2015: 35%) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from one
major customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Substantial bank deposits are held in major
financial institutions which management
believes are of high credit quality.

35.

e IR HRAR ML

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-Z—"FT-A=T—-RALEFE

g b E

AEESMTARAREEE —REETEENE
2Rk AEERR  RBESRR  FEXERERE
Rk -

(@) FERRE

AEENEERRERREE S MEMEYR
ERRTHER - BEEBECEITHEERE
W BEEZEFEERR

AEZFREMREFIAMNS @ BMBEEREE
HEBETLRENTP  BEETEEEN
o WEEEHEETREF BEMN IR
BB RBRENRZES  UREREEP
ZRABERREPEEMEM ZEBERE - N
SEFEUEZIEPHNMBIRETERR
%o BHRIFIREREAHEF0E00RE
Hi o BE  AKEYAREPKEUERM -

RBEHR rEEFE—ENEESTRA
% AB S M EAMEWGRIBERRE 2 20% (=&
—AF :16%) 244% (ZZF—HF : 35%) 5
FlARKE—BEBEEFRAARTE °

EEERS RIZESHBBHANAEIR

HEAISEZERERAR
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables reflect
the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows.

Creative China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

HMEEREE (K)
b) REBEZEE

AEEBE TN ENEEERATEATERER
T BRETEHRESAEBKRERBEETA
ENFERRER R EHERBEBRLEE
ETEREKER  ERGEAREZTG M
o ARENBRRRENERERBDESEX
REEBEZONAHRIBER  BREGRTHER
CREMREIZSHEBRENAGEEER
B ARNREHRBESHER -

TRAVNAEENENTESRBENBRT AL
BB o R AR K AR IR AN SR 1B A] 1 SRR
RORFEHMEHNERABENRMERS
ME - TREEMNEBERSHESIT
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

e R AR

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—FT-A=1T—-RALEFE

35. MBEBER (&)

(b) RBEZER ()

Total Within ~ Morethan  More than

contractual iyearor  1yearbut 2years but

Carrying undiscounted  repayable less than less than

amount cash flow  ondemand 2 years 5years
KR

gRe  -Fpd BBE-F  BEWS

BEE  REAE REXEE GIRWE  EIREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTr ARETn ARRTx

At 31 December 2016 R=Z-R"F+=A=t-H
Trade payables BoRENFIE 1,712 1,712 1,712 - -
Other payables Hi R 10,160 10,160 10,160 - -
11,872 11,872 11,872 - -
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year or 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted repayable less than less than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years

AR ‘

anEe  —FRE BE-F  BEWE
REE mESEE REREE BIRWE  EIRLEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR

At 31 December 2015 R=Z-AF+=A=t-H
Trade payables BoRENFIE 3,122 3,122 3,122 - -
Other payables HHERFIR 12,670 12,812 12,172 640 -
15,792 15,934 15,294 640 =

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=ER

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rate.

PREASZERERAT 2 AFEERE
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for the year ended 31 December 2016
BECZE—AF+=-A=1+—-HLFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on
certain of its financial instruments which are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk is primarily HKS.

MR ERE (F)
d E®REE

AEEHRNESERREESETESRITA
RAESERMINEEBEAIZEHEE -
ELHREBRNEETERET -

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEEY 32,417 100,221
Accruals FEETER (2,819) (2,930)
29,508 97,291

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit for the year and
retained earnings in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of reporting period. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in profit and retained earnings where the
RMB weakens against the relevant currency.
For a strengthening of the RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and retained
earnings, and the balances below would be
negative.

TRINEARNEEF RN R RE BN EAARNEE
& HRE S E KA S I Y SMNEE R 197 5E
BemELNROES - TRIESBRMHEA
RELZEEERRE BN RREEFEZN -
MARBEBEAEETHE - ¥aM RRERA
HBEERNEFEZE MIRZERBLSE
2

As at 31 December 2016 As at 31 December 2015

R=B-A%+-A=t-H RZF-RF+-A=t-H
Effect on Effect on
Increase in profit for Increase in profit for
foreign the year foreign the year
exchange  and retained exchange and retained
rate earnings rate eamings
HERENR BEREN R
HEEREN REBANFE HEEXEN RERNNFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARETR
HKS BT 5% 1,301 5% 4,067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the
group entities; exposure to currency risk for
both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes
in foreign exchange rates over the period
until the next annual reporting date. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects
on each of the group entities’ profit for the
year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting
period for presentation purposes.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB128,937,000 only, comprising share capital and
reserves.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2017, the Company had fulfilled
and completed the conditions of the placing.
200,000,000 new shares of the Company have been
placed to not less than six placees at the placing
price according to placing agreement. Each of the
placees and its ultimate beneficial owners (where
applicable) is an independent third party and none of
the placees has become a substantial shareholder
after the completion.
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37.

e IR AR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—"FT-A=T—-ALFE

MR ERE (F)

(d) E¥EkEER

FEME AT RN RS RE RSS2 B
BBE  YEOEANAEESEE - ABERE
FERIFTES BT AL SEEBRNZEHE
TR - TMRARFT A EL it B AN R e A o

POl E R E R EHEE TFERERA IS
FEXF AR LIRS B &)~ 5F {4 - ERFF
RN EREHEEE TS ERIZTREIEE
SERAEVIERERR 2 EXBE S ARE
HEIZ BEOF R ks 2 FBERT -

AEXREE

AEBEAEERBRDREASENGEZE
A7 B BRBE A4 1) 3% % 70 L 4t ) 2 4 B 2 JR AR e
R BREBEAEBIARDE SR -

BREBENARERNERE  AEBKSARRMBRE
BEE S5 BREEARER BITHFRALEEE
LR AMERS ©

AEFBEAEBEBFEARNR B ABERIZAR
128,937,000 7T (2B AN K (i) o

RERKRER

R-ZE—tF—A+N\B  AREmERTKEE
BRI - RIBACE e 1R AL & (BAC & 200,000,000 fx
RRBIHND T ADRINBARA o ABREAMH K
RESHEAAN(HER) KBILE=77 » WNTMR
%1&)’ BIEARAKRAEIERR (EERAIER LD
A ©
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Financial Summary
BT BEE

for the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z—"Ft+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=1+—HILEE
2013 2014 2015 2016
—T—=F —ZT-NNFE —T—FHF ZB-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT AR®ETT ARETR
RESULTS S
Turnover X 48,479 56,144 72,596 78,435
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATS B AR,
(E518) 2,804 9,205 4,101 (22,378)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fis®i () R (832) (2,712 (3,784) 4,669
Profit/(loss) for the year FNmAl (E8) 1,972 6,493 317 (17,709)
Attributable to: FEAh
Owners of the Company RAREE A 1,972 6,493 528 (16,138)
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR AR = = (211) (1,571)
1,972 6,493 317 (17,709)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016
—T-=F —T-MmMF —T-—HF ZB-KF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE > 8ER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Total assets BEME 34,284 42,517 150,413 168,187
Total liabilities BEERE (19,230) (19,034) (22,452) (29,568)
Net assets BESME 15,054 23,483 127,961 138,619
Non-controlling interests eI A - - (539) (9,682)
Equity attributable to the owners of KABER A
the Company FE(E 15,054 23,483 127,422 128,937
The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for REBHE=ZZT Ei&:;ﬁ—ﬂiﬂ':ﬂ =t+—HIM
the two years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the EFEzHFeERERAEER_T— =GR _F—NF
consolidated assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests T A=T—RZEGEEEE - EF&QH PRI BEE ThHE
of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 have HERRER - AN ERBRERST| 2EEZT] -
been extracted from the Prospectus. Such summary is
presented on the basis as set out in the Prospectus.
The financial information for the year ended 31 December AR AEEYEREE—T——F+_A=1T—HBILFE

2012 was not disclosed as consolidated financial
statements for the Group have not been prepared.
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